
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Wednesday, 7th December, 2022 
     at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 2nd November, 2022.  
 
 

5 - 14 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (01229 876322). 
 
  
(1)         Questions and Representations 
 
To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 
 
(2)         Deputations and Petitions 
 
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received 
from members of the public. 
 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Barrow Business Improvement District   
 
To receive the update on Barrow BID. 
 

15 - 54 

(D) 9.   Performance Management Q2 2022-2023   
 
To Receive the performance management report. 
 

55 - 60 

(D) 10.   Work Programme Update   
 
To note the updates on progress and consider whether further action 
is required. 
 

61 - 64 

(D) 11.   Memorial Bench Policy   
 
To consider and provide any comment on the attached revised 
Memorial Bench Policy and make recommendations to Executive 
Committee for adoption. 
 

65 - 80 

(D) 12.   Catering and Cleaning Contract Management Report   
 
To receive the catering and cleaning contract management report. 
 

81 - 92 

(D) 13.   Cleaning of Public Conveniences, Bus Shelters and Stairwells 
Contract 2020 - 2022   
 
To note the content of the report. 
 

93 - 96 



 

(D) 14.   Building cleaning (Offices and Housing Common Areas)   
 
To note the content of the report. 
 

97 - 102 

(D) 15.   Grounds Maintenance & Playgrounds Contract   
 
To note the arrangements for the Councils grounds maintenance and 
playground maintenance contract and provide any feedback to 
Officers. 
 

103 - 108 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Shirley (Chairman) 

Cassidy (Vice-Chair) 
Gawne 
Hall 
Johnston 
W. McClure 
McEwan 
Morgan 
Robson 
Ronson 
C. Thomson 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 29 November 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
      Meeting: Wednesday 2nd November, 2022 
      at 2.00 pm.  
 
PRESENT:-  Councillors Shirley (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Gawne, 
McEwan, Morgan, Robson and C. Thomson. 
 
Officers Present:- Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance), Susan Roberts 
(Director of Resources), Paula Westwood (Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team 
Leader) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer). 
 
19 – Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillor Hall.  
 
21 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 15th September, 2022 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
22 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- Representatives from United Utilities; namely, Nicholas Walls – Drainage 
Performance Manager for Cumbria and Russell Clark – Performance Engineer for 
Cumbria had attended the meeting and addressed the Committee in respect of Agenda 
Item No. 8 – Flooding on Walney Promenade (Minute No. 23 refers).   
 
23 – Work Programme Update  
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader had submitted a report outlining a 
summary of the progress made in respect of each topic as follows:- 
 
Flood Work Group  
 
At the previous meeting, the Committee had agreed to extend the scope of the review 
to look at wider flooding of the entire coast. A meeting of the Work Group had taken 
place in October with the Head of Programme Management and Climate Change so 
that the Work Group could understand the duties and responsibilities, along with the 
different organisations involved and their obligations with regards to flooding.  Details of 
the Cumbria Coastal Strategy had been appended to the report.  A Member had raised 
concerns over South Walney being recorded as ‘No active intervention’ as there was 
well established coastal erosion problems on South Walney and the sea cuts right 
across the Nature Reserve.  The Member had asked if this point could be revisited and 
revised. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



The Head of Programme Management and Climate Change had been unable to attend 
the meeting and the Chair advised that any questions would be forwarded to him for a 
written response. 
 
Flooding on Walney Promenade 
 
At the previous meeting, Members had requested that United Utilities be invited to 
provide an update on the plans being made for the sewer network to prevent flooding 
on Walney Promenade. Arrangements had been made for a United Utilities 
representative to attend the meeting to provide an update, following on from the 
investigatory work they had undertaken earlier in the year. 
 
Nicholas Walls and Russell Clark from United Utilities had attended the meeting to 
provide an update.  They advised the Committee that the Maritime permits had taken 8 
months which was why their investigatory work had taken some time.  Investigations 
had indicated that some of the manhole covers had been subject to tidal water 
infiltration.  Some had been easily remedied by replacing the marine gaskets.  However, 
one manhole north of Teasdale Road was letting in water and the plan was to remove 
that.  It had been noted that permits would be required to undertake those works, which 
again could take some time to process. 
 
A Member asked if they believed that the measures taken/to be taken would address 
the flooding issues.  They advised that it would be difficult to say for certain due to many 
varying contributory factors such as height of tides, rain and flow but it was likely that 
the works would address the issues. 
 
Nicholas and Russell had offered to provide the Committee with a further progress 
update upon completion of the works which had been welcomed by the Committee. 
 
Discretionary Housing Payments 
 

At the previous meeting, the Committee had agreed to change the focus of the review 
to cover looking into the national legislation and potential loopholes and requested that 
the Director of Recourses be invited to present an update report at the next meeting. 
There was a separate item on the agenda from the Director of Resources (Minute No. 
26 refers). 
 
Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and Action Plan 
 
At the previous meeting, Members had requested Senior Management Team to provide 
a press release to communicate to Council Tax payers, details of ongoing or planned 
works in relation to the anti-social behaviour strategy.  Members had also requested 
that Gareth Sargent of Cumbria Police, together with the Head of People and 
Communities, be invited to the next meeting to provide an update. Following 
consultation with Senior Management Team and the Head of People and Communities, 
the Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader had been advised that there was 
multi agency work ongoing to address the issues previously reported in July, and at 
present, there were no further updates.  The Council had been working with Partners to 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



secure funding to assist with monitoring anti-social behaviour in the Town Centre; a 
report would be taken to Executive Committee prior to Christmas with an update on that. 
The Head of People and Communities would attend Committee in the future when that 
piece of work had been finalised and there was additional information to report. It had 
also been noted that corporate communications had been issued around Halloween and 
safety around Bonfire Night, in partnership with the Fire Service and the Police. 
 
The Chair expressed disappointment that no member of the team had attended the 
meeting to present an update, as anti-social behaviour was a major concern at the 
present time. 
 
It had been noted that a very detailed presentation, including anti-social behaviour 
measures, had been offered to all Members on the evening of 1st November and only 
a small number of Members had attended. 
 
The Chair advised that it would be useful to know the number of arrests made to tackle 
anti-social behaviour, to assure the Committee that action was being taken. 
 
Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 
 
The Work Group had not met since the last Committee meeting in September. The Head 
of Public Protection had advised that national and local comms were now focused on 
the Autumn Booster for both Covid and Flu and at present, there was nothing further to 
report. 
 
It had been noted that a meeting of the Work Group was scheduled to take place on 
17th November and that an update would be provided at the next meeting. 
 
Barrow BID 
 
At the previous meeting it had been agreed that a review of Barrow BID be added to the 
Work Programme. The Head of Regeneration in her capacity as the named Liaison 
Officer between the Borough Council and the BID would bring a report to December’s 
Committee meeting detailing the annual activity of the BID. The BID Manager would 
also attend that meeting to present the Business Plan and answer any questions from 
Members. 
 
RESOLVED:-  To note the updates on progress in respect of each of the Work Groups. 
 
24 – Contract Management  
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Audit and Governance Committee had 
established a Combined Improvement Plan which addressed recommendations from 
external audit, internal audit, the Annual Governance Statement review of governance, 
and the self-assessment of the CIPFA Financial Management Code.  A copy of the 
improvement plan had been attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



The Plan incorporated the statutory recommendations made in relation to the external 
audit of 2020-2021 including ensuring Members and Officers had robust assurance and 
reporting arrangements in place, for managing all ongoing contracts and to enable 
appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider deficiencies. 
 
The Director of Resources had proposed that Overview and Scrutiny Committee may 
wish to oversee the performance management and service delivery of significant 
contracts, which would also provide assurance and transparency of contract 
management. 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To agree that Contract Management Assurance would be incorporated into 
the Work Programme; and 

 
2. To agree that the Director of Resources would provide all Members of the 

Committee with a list of the contracts, requesting they choose six each to be 
shortlisted for review.  The final list for review would be determined in 
consultation with the Director of Resources, the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee and would be reported to the next meeting. 

 
25 – Service Performance  
 
The Director of Resources reported that the service performance framework had been 
reviewed to clarify the indicators reported in the Annual Statement of Accounts.  
Performance against corporate strategic priorities was reported within the Growing 
Forward report. 
 
The framework had been attached as an appendix to the report and aimed to define 
each indicator, to note the source of the data, any target in place where that was 
relevant, and the 
responsible Officer. 
 
The report contained the service performance for the financial year 2021-2022 and 
quarter 1 of 2022-2023 where this was available. 
 
Planning Applications 
 
Planning applications had a nationally set target for major applications processed within 
13 weeks of 60%, and other applications within 8 weeks of 70%. 
 
Performance was measured across a two-year period and at 31 March 2022 and 30 
June 2022, the major applications were 73.68% within 13 weeks and the others 74.26% 
within 8 weeks. 
 
Food Safety Inspections 
 
The food safety inspections had been reset post-COVID by the Food Standards Agency. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 
The inspection regime was a phased approach based on the categories of the 
establishment, with new businesses highlighted as a priority. 
 
In accordance with the Food Standards Agency recovery plan all ‘A’ rated premises had 
received an on-site intervention, in addition 7 out of 10 ‘B’ rated premises had received 
an on-site intervention, along with 29 ‘C’ rated, 29 ‘D’ rated and 51 ‘E’ rated premises 
receiving an intervention. 
 
Achievement of the recovery plan was better suited to an annual report. 
 
Forum Theatre Attendance 
 
There had been 23,742 attendees for 2021-2022; recovery from COVID restrictions had 
impacted the programme.  For quarter 1 there had been 12,176 attendees. 
 
Disabled Facilities Grants Awarded 
 
During 2021-2022 104 grants had been awarded; for quarter 1, 41 grants had been 
awarded. 
 
From December 2022 the Council had appointed a second Housing Grants Officer, and 
increased the non‐means tested limit of grant to £10,000.  
 
Operations 
 
There were several performance indicators for Operational Services.  Indicators for 
2021- 2022 had been recorded as follows; performance for 2022-2023 was not yet 
available: 
 

 Playground maintenance inspections 100% 

 Waste containers delivered within 7 working days 73% 

 Assisted list waste collections missed 0.11% 

 Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being reported 67% 

 Percentage of missed waste or recycling collections 4.53% 
 
There was also an indicator for the percentage of household waste sent for recycling 
and the data for 2021-2022 was not yet available.  It was expected that there would be 
an improvement within quarter 4. 
 
Corporate Complaints 
 
The percentage of corporate complaints dealt with within the timescales assigned to the 
stages was 64% for 2021-2022; an analysis had been attached as an appendix to the 
report. 
 
For quarter 1 of 2022-2023 performance was at 75%. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Complaints handling training was planned be provided by the Local Government 
Ombudsman in November/December 2022. 
 
Housing Benefits 
 
With Universal Credit as the route for support to working age claimants, the legacy 
benefit claims were limited to the more complex areas of specified/supported 
accommodation and temporary accommodation, and all pension age claimants. 
 
The average time to process a new claim across 2021-2022 had been 30 days and for 
quarter 1 2022-2023 had been 27 days. 
 
The average time to process a change in circumstances across 2021-2022 had been 5 
days and for quarter 1 2022-2023 had been 10 days – there was a significant bulk of 
transactions in the last quarter of the year; at the same time last year performance had 
been at 11 days. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Department had managed the Council’s business support 
grants, extended Business Rate relief, Council Tax relief and Self isolation Payments 
through 2021-2022 which hugely increased workloads. 
 
During 2022-2023 Revenues and Benefits had managed the Energy Rebate schemes. 
 
There were several vacancies within the service and agency workers were currently 
engaged and a document management automation was currently being implemented. 
 
Revenues 
 
As noted in the Housing Benefits section, the additional work from COVID and the 
Energy Rebate schemes had impacted performance. 
 
For Council Tax 2021-2022, the Council had achieved 95.35% in-year collection; 
recovery of the balances owed continued beyond the billing year. 
 
For quarter 1 2022-2023 collection had been at 28.61% (2021-2022 had been 28.67%). 
 
For Business Rates 2021-2022 had achieved 97.94% in-year collection; quarter 1 2022-
2023 had been 34.46% (2021-2022 had been 26.1%). 
 
The collection of Business Rates was ahead of previous years but that could be 
influenced by the major ratepayer’s payment dates changing even slightly over a month-
end. 
 
Absence Management 
 
Absence management performance had been reported as an average over the 
workforce – that was not to infer that all staff had been absent through illness, it was a 
standard calculation. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 
The average number of days lost to long term sickness for 2021-2022 had been 9.15; 
for quarter 1 2022-2023 it had been 2.74 days (2021-2022 quarter 1 had been 1.76 
days). 
 
The average number of days lost to short term sickness for 2021-2022 had been 2.4; 
for quarter 1 2022-2023 it had been 0.56 days (2021-2022 quarter 1 had been 0.2 days). 
 
Conclusion 
 
The service performance had been presented for noting and should the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee wish to delve into any area of performance, the appropriate Head 
of Service would be instructed to report to or attend the Committee meeting. 
 
The Director of Resources advised that it was her intention to reinstate quarterly 
reporting in table format with RAG ratings. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Service Performance report. 
 
26 – Supported Accommodation  
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council was responsible for administering 
the Housing Benefit regulations on behalf of the Department of Works and Pensions. 
 
Specified or exempt accommodation was generally referred to as supported 
accommodation for Housing Benefit purposes and was provided by non-profit making 
organisations as landlords. 
 
For those living in supported accommodation, Housing Benefit covered the rent element 
and eligible service charges (eligibility was set out in the DWP regulations); payment 
was referred to as enhanced housing benefit. 
 
For supported accommodation Housing Benefit claims, the Council must have the 
evidence to support their determination that: 
 

 The landlord falls within the prescribed categories – non-metropolitan county 
council, housing association that does not trade for profit, registered charity or 
non-profit making voluntary organisation, and 

 The landlord or person acting on its behalf was responsible for providing care, 
support, or supervision beyond the level any tenant would expect from any 
landlord, and 

 The tenant had an actual or potential need for the available support which must 
relate to giving advice and assistance to the claimant in coping with practicalities 
of everyday life, and 

 The care, support or supervision is an obligation of the landlord, and 

 There was an explanation about how much the ineligible service charge was and 
how it was funded – if there was no separate identifiable funding stream there 
was a deduction from the eligible rent to cover the cost of the provision. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
The Council was able to determine a reduced Housing Benefit payment or to pay no 
enhancement where the criteria was not met; the Council must disclose to the landlord 
the reason for any reduction. 
 
Where no enhancement was paid, the Local Housing Allowance (LHA or rent element) 
was paid. 
 
There were several supported accommodation providers within the Borough, 
particularly within Barrow-in-Furness, which brought a high volume of claims. 
 
Gathering and verifying the evidence to determine such claims was far greater than an 
individual claimant application and the Housing Benefit department had established 
systems and processes to cover schemes where that was possible; scheme means a 
particular landlord and a particular building or property. 
 
The level of care provided to those in supported accommodation was not for the Council 
to determine, but for the Housing Benefit determination the care must be needed and 
went sufficiently beyond what any non-supported tenant would receive. 
 
Where enhanced Housing Benefit had not been paid or was reduced from the amount 
claimed, the landlord may appeal to the Tribunal Service. 
 
The Council and the landlord can proceed to the High Court following the tribunal. 
 
The potential for conflict with the Homeless Duty potentially arises where the enhanced 
Housing Benefit does not meet the DWP criteria and payment is reduced or only LHA 
can be paid; this may lead to individuals being turned away from accommodation and 
presenting as homeless. 
 
The Council cannot pay enhanced Housing Benefit pending a tribunal decision as to 
knowingly pay without the supporting evidence may remove the Council’s entitlement to 
subsidy from the DWP, and could bring into question the Council’s ability to administer 
the regulations. 
 
Where supported accommodation was provided by an organisation that was not a 
Housing Association, there was a limitation on the DWP subsidy which results in the 
Council directly funding the difference.  This was a budget impact the Council had no 
control over from a Housing Benefit perspective. 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To note the report; and 
 
2. To agree to recommend that the Executive Committee, on behalf of the Council, 

should send a letter to the Secretary of State, the Chief Executive of 
Westmorland and Furness Shadow Authority and the local MP (cc’d to the 
Leader of Westmorland and Furness Shadow Authority), requesting that 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



consistent Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates be applied across the three 
areas of Barrow, South Lakeland and Eden. 

 
The meeting closed at 3.19 pm.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

7 December 2022 

Barrow Business Improvement District 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Helen Houston 

Wards:    Central; Hindpool; 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report provides an update of the work of Barrow Business Improvement 

District since their re-election for a second term in 2021.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the 

contents of this report and the update provided on Barrow BID and forward 

any comments to Executive Committee who will be receiving a report to a 

future meeting. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 

3.1 Barrow BID was established in 2016 as a result of a democratic vote of the 

businesses within the defined BID area, 77.5% of the businesses voted for the 

creation of a Business Improvement District for Barrow Town Centre.  

 

3.2.1 The levy is used to deliver projects which will benefit the businesses in the BID 

area and during the first term successfully delivered a range of events and 

projects within the town centre. 

 

3.2.2 The second term for Barrow BID commenced 1 September 2021, following 

further ballot process where businesses voted to continue the Business 

Improvement District. At this time arrangements were confirmed for a BID 

Liaison Officer for the Council which is currently undertaken by the Head of 

Regeneration and Planning Policy. 

 

3.2.3 To support the collaborative working relationship between Barrow BID and the 

Council regular BID Liaison meetings are held and the BID Liaison Officer meets 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



regularly with the BID Manager. Since September 2021 the following activities 

have been undertaken:  

 

BID Liaison 

 

Regular liaison meetings are held between Barrow Borough Council and Barrow 

BID these present the opportunity to provide an update on the BID Levy 

collection undertaken by the Councils Revenues & Benefits Team and any other 

activities which are relevant to the work of the BID or the Council. 

 

In addition to the formal meetings which occur bi monthly the Head of 

Regeneration & Planning Policy has informal meetings with the BID Manager 

when required. The relationship between the Council and the BID has improved 

following the formalisation of this relationship through the liaison meetings. 

 

Levy Collection 

 

Barrow Borough Council collects the BID levy from businesses within the BID 

area and issues bills and reminders at appropriate times. The payment of levies 

is reported through the Liaison Meetings. 

 

Events, Marketing and Promotion 

 

A number of events and activities have been held during 2022 which have been 

a great success and welcomed people back to the town centre. Events include 

Santa Dash, Dino Day, Soapbox Challenge, Shop Barrow Day, Festival of 

Transport, Piano Trail. A full list of events will be circulated prior to the meeting. 

 

The BID and Council have worked together on numerous occasions, publicising 

events and undertaking joint promotional campaigns. 

 

Welcome Back Fund 

 

Following the pandemic Barrow Bid and the Council worked together to deliver a 

package of activity funded by the Welcome Back and Reopening High Streets 

Safely Funds. This work was intended to support local businesses ‘bounce back’ 

from the pandemic and welcome visitors and residents back to our high streets 

and centres by giving them confidence that they would be met by a safe and 

welcoming environment. Activity included a promotional campaign through Visit 

Barrow, promotional material including videos, leaflets and a map/guide to local 

businesses and attractions, enhanced social media coverage, temporary public 

realm enhancements on Dalton Road and delivery of a bespoke event to support 

retailers. 

 

HSHAZ 

 

Barrow BID have supported the Re:discover Barrow High Streets Heritage Action 

Zone on Duke Street with match funding in years 1 and 2. They sit on the 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



steering group and cultural consortium along with other stakeholders and work in 

partnership on heritage projects within the town centre. 

 

High Streets Task Force 

 

Barrow BID, along with other town centre stakeholders, were invited to work with 

High Street experts from the High Streets Task Force who have now held two 

sessions in the town centre one in 2021 and one in 2022. Following a workshop 

in October 2022, the BID and the Council will work collaboratively to deliver 

some of the suggestions put forward by the experts to revitalise the town centre 

in the short term, whilst the long term regeneration plans take place. 

 

Levelling Up Fund 

 

Barrow BID have been working collaboratively with Council officers to support 

the successful Levelling Up Fund application for the redevelopment of the Market 

Hall and surrounding space. A number of BID levy payers including market 

traders are affected by the redevelopment work and the BID are supporting 

traders through this process and supporting events and activities in the Market, 

Forum, Town Square and Market Square. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 This is an update report so no consultation has been undertaken however where 

appropriate consultation exercises have taken place as part of town centre 

activities where appropriate. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 This is an update report for noting no alternative options are presented. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The work of Barrow BID in partnership with the Council supports the Place and 

Prosperity priorities of the Council Plan, as it delivers investment in the town 

centre and local businesses and works to create a vibrant, safe and welcoming 

place where people want to live thus supporting the economy to thrive. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 This is an update report for noting and there are therefore no financial 

implications. The local authority manage the billing and collection of the levy and 

hold the levy in a ring-fenced revenue account. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 A business improvement district is managed by a Business Improvement District 

body, for Barrow BID this is Barrow BID Limited. The Council collect the levy on 

behalf of the BID who provide additional or improved services guided by 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



businesses’ needs. The BID body is responsible for developing and 

implementing its business plan which sets out how the Business Improvement 

District will operate. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The second term of the BID extends to 2026 and therefore past the life of Barrow 

 Borough Council. The relationship with Barrow BID and other Business 

 Improvements Districts within Westmorland and Furness will be established 

 going forward. Officers working in Barrow will continue with the established 

 relationship with Barrow BID as we move to Westmorland & Furness Council in 

 April 2023 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 This report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 
 
   

 

Contact Officers  

Helen Houston, Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendix to report 

 

1. Business Improvement District – Business Plan 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 Previous Reports to Executive 

Committee on Barrow BID  

https://barrowbid.co.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2021/05/T2_Business_Plan.pdf  

  

Page 18

Agenda Item 8

mailto:hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://barrowbid.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/T2_Business_Plan.pdf
https://barrowbid.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/T2_Business_Plan.pdf


11

A Proposal for a 

Business Improvement District 

for Barrow Town Centre 

2021 - 2026

Page 19

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



12

Welcome

barrow
to the new

Page 20

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



12

What is a Business Improvement District? ............................................................................................................2

What is Barrow BID? .......................................................................................................................................................... 3

Message from the Barrow BID Chair ..................................................................................................................... 4

Our story so far .................................................................................................................................................................5-6

Governance & management of Barrow BID ......................................................................................................7

Business Testimonials .......................................................................................................................................................... 8

Impact and achievements 2016-2021 ........................................................................................................................9

- Marketing and promotion ...........................................................................................................................................9 

- Events, festivals and activities .................................................................................................................................10

- Making the town more accessible and attractive ............................................................................. 12-13 

- Securing further investment ...................................................................................................................................... 13

- Building effective partnerships ...............................................................................................................................14

- Business support during COVID ........................................................................................................................... 15

Consultation............................................................................................................................................................................. 16

Proposed priorities 2021 – 2026 ................................................................................................................................. 19

Barrow BID Area .................................................................................................................................................................20

Busier Barrow ........................................................................................................................................................................ 22

Brighter Barrow ....................................................................................................................................................................23

Better Barrow ........................................................................................................................................................................24

Bounce Back ..........................................................................................................................................................................25

Financial forecast  .............................................................................................................................................................26

BID Levy rules ....................................................................................................................................................................... 28

What happens if Barrow doesn’t have a BID ................................................................................................30

Vote YES to Barrow BID .................................................................................................................................................31

How to vote ...........................................................................................................................................................................32

Contents

Barrow BID 2021-2026 
Business Plan

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



32

Business Improvement Districts are business 
led partnerships which are created through 
a ballot process to deliver additional services 
to local businesses. They can be a powerful 
tool for directly involving local businesses in 
activities and allow the business community 
and local authorities to work together to 
improve a defined area. 

Businesses, local authorities and 
organisations within a BID area are charged 
a levy based on the rateable value of their 
premises.  

This levy is used to develop projects which 
will benefit businesses in the BID area. There 
is no limit on what projects or services can 
be provided through a Business Improvement 
District. The only requirement is that they 
are in addition to those provided by local 
authorities and tackle the priorities of 
businesses within the BID area. 

BIDs were first set-up throughout the UK in 
2005 and there are over 320 active BIDs 
across the UK & Ireland.

What is a Business 
Improvement District (BID)?

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



32

Barrow BID was established in 2016 as a 
result of a democratic vote of the businesses 
within the defined BID area, when 77.5% of 
businesses voting said YES to the creation 
of a Business Improvement District (BID) in 
Barrow town centre.  

The new term of the Barrow BID is being 
proposed by the Barrow BID Company 
Limited and will run from 1st September 2021 
– 31st August 2026. 

The BID levy is set at 1.5% of the rateable 
value (RV) of each non-domestic premises 
with an RV of £4,000 or more. 

What is 
Barrow BID?

The main aims of 
Barrow BID for their 
second term are:

Create a 

Busier Barrow
Create a 

Brighter Barrow
Create a 

Better Barrow

following the COVID pandemic

Help businesses to 

Bounce Back

Barrow BID will continue to be 
responsive to the needs of businesses 
within the BID area and will amend 
its focus based on the requirements 
of businesses.

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



54

Barrow BID is led by a team of Directors, all 
of who, like myself are business owners or 
managers within the town centre, meaning 
we all have first-hand experience of the 
challenges the town is facing and are best 
placed to overcome them.  As a BID, we 
have delivered a wealth of projects over 
our first 5 year term. This includes some 
large scale events, of which, Barrow has 
never seen before; like the Super Soapbox 
Challenge and the Festival of Transport.  
These will continue to grow over the next 
5 years and will help with our ambition to 
turn Barrow into a destination town.  We 
have also provided countless businesses and 
community groups with financial support for 
their own events, or carry out improvements 
to their businesses.  These are just a few of 
the many highlights and initiatives we have 
delivered.

Having lived in the Barrow area all my life, 
I want our Town Centre to thrive.  I am a 
firm believer that our Town Centre still has 
a place as the hub of our community.  It is 
unlikely this will be just retail lead anymore, 
but will become a mixture of hospitality, 
restaurants, leisure and services mixed in 
amongst the traditional independent and 
national retailers.  This will be coupled with 
more people living within the Town Centre, 
creating a real community feel to the area, 
a place where you would want to spend 
time, to arrange to meet a friend for coffee 
mid-afternoon or sit outside with a glass 
of wine in your hand on a warm summer’s 
evening.

The continuation of Barrow BID is not just 
about more of the same though, it’s about 
growing, regenerating and revitalising the 
town centre so that it is fit for the future.  We 
will strive to continue to listen to our levy-
paying businesses, so that we, as a collective 
can shape our own futures and the future of 
the town where we live.”

Message from the 
BID Chairman:

Barrow BID is essentially a group of 
businesses working together to deliver projects 
and initiatives to improve OUR Town Centre.

- Paul Hodgson, BID Chairman

“The world we live in has changed a lot 
in the last 14 months, which has, in turn, 
had a massive impact on our Town Centre, 
making the BIDs role more crucial than ever 
to ensure that we, as a business collective, 
can adapt and plan for a sustainable future 
where businesses can prosper.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



54

In 2015 local businesses teamed up with the local 
authority to explore how a business improvement 
district could assist Barrow town centre to tackle 
changing shopping habits by marketing the 
town as a sub-regional shopping destination, 
improving access, increasing pride, re-establishing 
Barrow’s evening economy and building effective 
partnerships.  

Barrow BID was established on 1st September 2016 
following a democratic ballot of local businesses 
and the newly formed Barrow BID Company Limited 
employed a consultant BID Manager to deliver 
projects, initiatives and events aimed at meeting the 
priorities set out in the business plan. 

Town centre events have played a big part 
in Barrow BID’s first term. We understand the 
importance of these to boost the local economy 
and increase footfall on event days. However, 
more importantly, events improve local pride in the 
town, help to change the perception of the town 
from the outside and create lasting memories. 
Barrow BID felt that Barrow town centre was being 
under-utilised as an event destination and set 
about establishing high profile events right in the 
heart of the town. The Festival of Transport is now 
in its 4th year and has become part of Barrow’s 
established events calendar with its own committee 
which should make it sustainable for years to come. 
Barrow BID has also organised and delivered a 
Comedy Festival, Dino Day, Christmas Events and 
the Super Soapbox Challenge, which took place in 
June 2019 and attracted over 16,000 onto Barrow’s 
high street creating a feel good factor which got 
local people talking positively about the town.  

Our story so far...

In 2018 Barrow BID were asked to partner with BAE 
Systems, Barrow Borough Council and Cumbria 
County Council to bring a stage start of the Tour 
of Britain Cycle Race to Barrow in Furness. The 
event was a huge success and put Barrow on the 
map as a destination town, highlighting the area 
as a staycation destination for cycling, walking, its 
diverse coastline and natural heritage.  

Barrow BID seized the opportunity on the back 
of the Tour of Britain event to create the ‘Visit 
Barrow’ brand and promote Barrow in Furness as 
a destination via a marketing and promotional 
campaign which included, a website, social media, 
a tri-fold leaflet and regional advertising.  

In January 2019 Barrow BID launched their Business 
Premises Improvement scheme which enabled BID 
levy paying businesses and new businesses to apply 
for up to £1,000 to improve the exterior of their 
town centre premises. As of April 2021, 33 businesses 
have taken advantage of the grant scheme and 
made their premises brighter with new signs, paint, 
doors, windows and external features. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



76

The festive period is the most important time for 
high street retailers, however, competition has 
increased with an increase in out-of-town retail 
parks and the dramatic rise of online shopping. 
Barrow BID understands that high street retail 
cannot compete for convenience so has had 
to look at other ways of attracting shoppers to 
the high street and create a festive atmosphere 
that people want to experience. In 2019 Barrow 
BID invested in over 3km of cross-street lighting 
and put lights and festive music throughout the 
town. Additional lights were purchased in 2020 to 
improve Barrow’s festive offer.  

Barrow BID are passionate about improving Barrow 
town centre and safeguarding the businesses 
in the town. As well as the events and schemes 
already mentioned Barrow BID has also delivered 
an extensive marketing and promotional campaign, 
organised community clean events, tidied emptied 
units and improved signage to car parks and 
businesses. Our FREE after 3pm car parking scheme 
has become very popular and ‘Shop Barrow Day’ 
is established as one of the busiest retail days in 
the year.  

The journey so far hasn’t all been plain sailing and 
the town centre has experienced some setbacks 
on the way. Losing M&S in 2020, the outbreak 
of the COVID pandemic in March 2020 and the 
subsequent closures of River Island, Topshop, 
Thorntons, Winfields, Carphone Warehouse and 
inevitably Debenhams will create a huge void in 
Barrow’s retail core, but Barrow is better prepared 
to transform the town centre by having a BID and 
we remain determined to create a town centre for 
future generations.  

Barrow BID goes to ballot for a second term from 
28th May to 24th June and we require your support 
to ensure that Barrow BID can continue to deliver 
projects, initiatives and events that will really make 
a difference.

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



76

Barrow BID is managed, and will continue to be 
managed, by the Barrow BID Company Limited which 
is an independent not-for-profit limited company 
governed by a Board of Directors consisting of 
business, organisation and public sector body 
representatives from across the BID area. This ensures 
direct local control and oversight of all the decision 
making to deliver maximum benefits to town centre 
businesses. The Board, who give their time on a 
voluntary basis, are responsible for delivering projects, 
initiatives and events from the Barrow BID business 
plan and getting return on investment on the BID levy. 
 

Paul Hodgson Chair  
Ryman Stationery (large retail)  

Phil Heath  
Heath’s (small retail) 

Sandra Collings  
Cumbria Sewing & Craft Centre (small retail) 

Kay Bower  
Labour Club (evening economy) 

John Graham 
McDonalds (hospitality, food & drink) 

Allan Kerr  
Simply Wall Art (small retail)

Governance & Management 
of the Barrow BID

Keiron Hart 
SAFA (charitable organisations) 

Rowen McClure  
RM Letting & Development  
(professional & financial services) 

Jonny Williams  
Cando FM (board nominated individual) 

Les McLease 
Drop Zone Youth Project  
(charitable organisations) 

Cara Harvey  
Nationwide Building Society  
(professional & financial services)

The board members 
taking forward the 
2nd term Barrow BID 
proposal include:

The BID Board oversees a paid BID Manager who 
is responsible for the implementation of schemes to 
benefit the BID area and businesses within the area. 

An Annual General meeting is held to which Barrow 
BID Members are invited. BID Levy payers aren’t 
automatically members of the Barrow BID Company 
Limited and must apply by completing a form at:  
www.barrowbid.co.uk/bid-members  

Annual Accounts are produced and externally verified 
by a qualified accountancy firm. The Accounts will be 
submitted to Companies House and made available 
via the BID website. The company is VAT registered

All businesses eligible to vote in the BID ballot will 
be invited to nominate themselves, or other eligible 
individuals, to be considered for directorship of the 
BID Company and oversee the delivery of the BID to 
meet the aims and objectives set out in this business 
plan document.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



98

Business Testimonials

“The premises grant scheme has had 

a positive impact on the town, as 

many businesses benefitted from it 

and it drastically improved the look 

of the town centre.”

RM Letting & Property 
“The Christmas shopping guide had 

the best impact for us.”

Special Occasions

“The event that made Barrow 

the busiest was the Soapbox, but 

December is great with the festive 

atmosphere and the range of events 

and activities. Dino Day was awesome 

and Barrow BID should be really proud 

of what they have achieved so far.”

Miss Melvs Radiance Beauty

“As we’ve found ourselves in dire 

circumstances, the simple idea 

of improving the Christmas lights, 

cheered everybody up instantly. 

This changed the mood of shoppers 

and from personal experience as a 

retailer, all our customers appreciate 

it immensely.”

Atomic Comica

“The past 12 months have proven 

how the perception of a town can be 

turned around with some innovative 

and aspirational ideas and some 

hard work. Colin and the team of BID 

volunteers can be very proud of what 

they have achieved during 2019.”

Great British High Street 

Awards Judge 

Page 28

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



98

Impact & Achievements 
of Barrow BID 2016 – 2021

“I have never seen 
the town centre 
so busy, what an 
amazing day!”

Super Soapbox Day 2019

“How good did 
Barrow look on  
the ITV shots, it 
made you proud 
to be a Barrovian.”

Tour of Britain 2018

Established the Visit Barrow brand
- Website receives over 80,000 visits a year

- 12,000 leaflets printed & distributed

- 3,500 people follow Visit Barrow  
 Facebook page

- Over 15,000 clicks onto our ’20 Reasons  
 NOT to Visit Barrow’ campaign 

- Creation of Barrow Heritage Leaflet in   
 partnership with Civic & History Society 

Production of Christmas Shopping Guide 
which highlighted over 50 national and 
independent retailers in the town centre.
The guide was distributed to 7,500 homes 
across the borough.

Extensive marketing and promotion 
campaign using local and regional media
Included a community radio campaign with 
Cando FM.

Marketing & 
Promotion of Barrow 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1110

The Festival of Transport event is in its 4th 
year and attracts over 150 vehicles and 
5,000 visitors.
The Festival of Transport started as the 
Classic & Vintage Car & Motorcycle Show 
but had a rebrand when other vehicle 
owners asked to join.

The Barrow BID Comedy Fest took place 
over a weekend in October 2019. 
A Comedy Pub Crawl enabled Barrow BID to 
engage with six bars and take our comedy 
audience on a voyage of discovery.
Family activities and mainstream comedians 
brought some laughs to Barrow town centre.

A diluted Dino Day took place in August 
2020 and brought some respite to families 
during the COVID pandemic.
The event had strict controls to meet COVID 
regulations and ensure staff, volunteers and 
the general public remained safe.

Events, Festivals 
& Activities 

The Super Soapbox Challenge attracted 
over 16,000 people to the town in June 2019
The event created a feel good factor in the 
town and got people talking about Barrow 
town centre and the work of Barrow BID.
BAE Systems and Orsted sponsored the 
event and proved that the town’s major 
employers are backing Barrow BID and 
Barrow town centre. The estimated boost 
to Barrow’s economy was in the region of 
£350,000.

Barrow BID has organised a series of 
family friendly trails across the town.
The trails have been a good way to raise 
awareness of businesses and engage with 
families in a socially distanced capacity.
So far Barrow BID have had over 500 
people on their family trails.

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1110

Barrow BID invested in the 
Tour of Britain as a major 
partner. We established a 

fanzone with a giant screen 
so people could watch the 
whole stage from Barrow 

town centre.

Barrow BID support the 
Christmas Light Switch On 
event which begins the  
festive celebrations in  
Barrow town centre.

Our ‘Special Projects Grant’ 
part funded a number of 
events in the town centre 
including; Santa Dash, Love 
Barrow Running Festival, 
Barrow Pride, This Is Me, 
The Flashmob... Barrow BID 
would like to encourage a 
programme of events and 
activities in the town centre 
throughout the year.

Supported Events

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1312

“The Christmas lights have 
never looked better, what a 
difference they have made 
to the town centre.”

Our Business Premises Grant scheme has 
assisted 33 businesses with grants totalling 
over £27,000, this has included 12 new town 
centre businesses.

Barrow BID has invested in new Christmas 
lighting for the town centre

- Over 3km of cross-street lights have been 
purchased and installed.

- Lights for town centre trees, 2D shapes 
and speakers have added to the festive 
atmosphere.

Making the town 
more attractive

We have funded a series of window vinyls to 
tidy up and enhance empty units, promote 
events and encourage people to stay safe 
during the COVID pandemic. 

We have organised a series of community 
clean events and have encouraged local 
business owners and the general public to 
take pride in their environment. The clean 
events enabled us to identify areas which 
required further attention.

We continue to lobby the local authorities to 
improve cleaning, planting and maintenance 
of the streetscape.

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1312

Barrow BID funded the cost of a new sign to 
be installed by Highways England to direct 
traffic to the town centre via Abbey Road.

Barrow BID has worked with Cumbria 
Highways to identify and deliver schemes 
from the 2016 Mott MacDonald report which 
highlights areas of improvement for access 
and movement in the town centre.

Existing road signs and phone boxes have 
been utilised to promote businesses.

Barrow BID has written to the local authority 
to request a town centre car park strategy 
and have implemented a number of schemes 
to improve car parking, including: 

Making the town  
more accessible

 O New car park signs which have 
enabled visitors to find town centre 
car parks more effectively. 

 O A FREE after 3pm scheme on the 
multi-storey and Whittaker Street car 
parks. 

 O FREE parking on ‘Shop Barrow Day’ 
and other days during the festive 
period. 

 O During 2021 Barrow BID has been 
working on a Train Station Gateway 
scheme which will see signs located 
from the train station to Dalton 
Road, promoting the route to 
visitors and encouraging them to 
visit Barrow’s town centre.

To ensure Barrow BID maximises the funding 
from BID levy payers we use the money to 
lever in funding from other sources, 
these have included:

Secure further 
investment into the town

 O Match funding the HSHAZ scheme which 
has enabled the borough council to draw 
down £1.9m  

 O Almost £60,000 in event sponsorship, 
predominantly from BAE Systems as 
our primary sponsor of the Soapbox 
Challenge, but also from Orsted, Furness 
Park and Stagecoach 

 O £1,000 from the Cumbria Rail Partnership 
towards our Train Station Gateway project 

Barrow BID will actively seek to bring in 
further match funding and investment 
during our second term.

Page 33

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1514

Barrow BID has representation on the Town 
Deal board who have secured a £25m 
grant from the Government to enhance the 
town and surrounding borough.

We have representation on the Town Centre 
Programme Board which has secured £1.9m 
to support a Heritage Action Zone on Duke 
Street and Cornwallis Street using some 
match funding from Barrow BID.

Barrow BID also represent town centre 
businesses on the following strategic 
partnerships:

Cycling & Walking Infrastructure 
Partnership which is a public sector led 
partnership focusing on how walking and 
cycling can stimulate economic growth, 
health and tourism.

Barrow Cultural Consortium which is part of 
the Heritage Action Zones and identifies and 
delivers cultural initiatives to support and 
promote Barrow’s rich heritage

Furness Line CRP which is a public and 
rail partnership devoted to improving and 
promoting the Furness railway line.

The Local Focus Hub which is a Cumbria 
Police led initiative focusing on crime and 
disorder issues such as anti-social behaviour, 
street begging, vandalism and shoplifting.

Build Effective Partnerships

Furness Tourism Forum which is a private 
and public sector led group focusing on 
enhancing Barrow as a tourism destination.

Market Traders Association which is a local 
authority led group set up to understand the 
needs of Barrow’s indoor market traders.

Barrow Festival of Transport committee 
which was set up by Barrow BID to 
undertake the organisation and delivery of 
the Festival of Transport event held in July 
each year.

We are also working with Barra Culture and 
the new Borough Council Events Team to 
review and organise a series of events and 
event space in the town.

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1514

Barrow BID created a directory of town 
centre businesses remaining open or 
reaching customers via takeaway or delivery 
services. We actively promoted town centre 
businesses throughout the local community 
and asked the ‘community resilience 
partnership’ to share the directory with 
vulnerable adults.

We produced a COVID support pack for 
businesses re-opening after lockdown one 
which consisted of floor stickers and posters 
containing information on social distancing 
and COVID regulations. 

We aided town centre businesses with 
barriers and H&S support, particularly where 
there were issues with queuing in the streets 
where neighbouring businesses were affected. 

Barrow BID supplied information about 
grants and support on our social media 
applications and created a Coronavirus area 
on our website. We also worked with private 
and public sector partners to deliver a range 
of guidance support, online seminars and 
Q&A sessions regarding the Government’s 
grant scheme.

During the Coronavirus pandemic Barrow 
BID continued to promote the town and 
small businesses with localised promotional 
campaigns.

As a BID, during the first lockdown we 
embarked on a ‘Business Focus’ campaign 
on social media, highlighting many of the 
businesses within our town centre.

Business support 
during the COVID 
pandemic

The Coronavirus pandemic changed the 
way we deliver events in the town, as 
social gatherings were reduced or stopped 
all together. We adapted to this situation 
by delivering a series of town trails, 
which attracted families to the town and 
encouraged them to explore the town centre 
and visit businesses in their own family 
bubble. Barrow BID has delivered three town 
trails with over 500 people participating and 
25 businesses involved.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1716

It is encouraging to see that almost 75% of respondents believe that 
Barrow BID has made a ‘good’ impact or better in the town. It was 
interesting to read from respondents that the Super Soapbox Challenge 
event was a pivotal point for Barrow BID and made businesses aware of 
who we are and what we are aiming to achieve. 

2. How successful has Barrow BID been in making an impact?

Excellent 12.6%

Very Good 29.9%

Good 32.2%

OK 20.7%

Poor 4.6%

Consultation
Following consultation with local businesses we identified the 
main priorities businesses are asking Barrow BID to focus on 
for the next term.  
 
Consultation has included a Business Satisfaction Survey for 
BID levy payers, which provided us with the following results:

Barrow BID is known for its delivery of high quality 
events and it is no surprise that BID Levy payers are 
aware of our primary events. It is encouraging that 
over 50% of respondents were aware of 24 schemes 
delivered by Barrow BID and shows where we need 
to increase communication with BID levy payers. 

1. What Barrow BID Schemes are you aware of?

Super Soapbox 100% Tour of Britain 76% Cando FM Advertising 48%

Festival of Transport 93% Visit Barrow Brand 76% Tourism Leaflet 41%

Dino Day 90% Shop Barrow Day 76% Tourism Signs 41%

End of Street Signs 90% Barrow BID Website 76% Comedy Festival 41%

Free Parking Days 90% Visit Barrow Website 72% Music Installations 38%

Barrow BID Facebook 90% Community Cleans 69% New Business Support 38%

Christmas Lights 90% Outdoor Market 69% Heritage Leaflet 34%

Premises Grants 90% Pavement Cafes 66% Cycling Leaflets 31%

Xmas Shopping Guide 86% Car Parking Signs 66% Heritage Action Zone 31%

Free after 3pm Parking 86% Visit Barrow Facebook 62% Heritage Trail 31%

Window Vinyls 83% Grants for Events 55% Choir Competition 31%

Christmas Events 83% Buskers 52% Street Football Festival 28%

Many of the schemes in the right hand column have 
been delivered via our Visit Barrow brand and levy 
payers may not understand that this is a brand that 
we created and manage to promote the town as a 
destination location. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1716

We asked respondents to rank their first three priorities in each of our main 2nd term objectives and gave them a score based on their rank. 

3. What should Barrow BID focus on next?

Busier Barrow Score Brighter Barrow Score Better Barrow Score

Car parking 46 Tidy Empty Units 32 Regular Events 43

Promoting the town 27 Premises Grants 27 Attracting Business 34

Promoting businesses 26 More Entertainment 23 Large Scale Events 18

Public Transport 10 Pavement Cafes 19 Community Events 17

Improved signage 9 Community Cleaning 16 Tackle ASB 13

Busier Barrow
As expected, we received a lot of feedback from 
businesses who feel that out-of-town retail parks with 
convenient free parking have an unfair advantage 
and this meant that car parking ranked as the highest 
priority for businesses. Barrow BID has written to the 
local authority with a request to produce a car park 
strategy which would see parking fees decrease and 
the pay on entry systems replaced with pay on exit, 
which encourages longer stays.

Businesses would like to see a continuation of 
marketing and promotion of the town centre and 
businesses within the town. They felt that the Christmas 
Shopping Guide (Nov 2020) was a great success and 
not only promoted the wealth of shops in the town 
but helped dispel the myth that Barrow town centre is 
full of charity shops and budget shops. 

Walking and cycling infrastructure were separate 
schemes and totalled 15, showing that there is an 
appetite to improve green routes into the town. 
 

Brighter Barrow
The main focus of respondents was to do something 
about the number of empty units in the town centre. If 
these can’t be filled and put to use, businesses want 
to see them tidied so they don’t affect surrounding 
properties/businesses.  

The premises grant scheme has proven to be 
very popular and businesses would like to see a 
continuation of this scheme into the 2nd term.
Pavement cafes were a popular choice from 
businesses with comments including, “This is an 
opportunity to use our pedestrianised streets to 
transform the town.”  

Better Barrow 
Although large scale events scored well coming in 
3rd, businesses were keen to see more regular events 
and felt that Barrow needed specific areas to host 
events and activities.  

It is no surprise to see attracting businesses high on 
the list as there is a need to replace the businesses 
who have left the town and fill the empty units left 
behind. Barrow BID has written to our local MP to 
request a rate review which would affect town centre 
businesses in two ways. We have asked that non-
domestic rates are reduced, but more importantly, 
that high street (retail core) premises have a higher 
reduction to bring them in line with the edge of town 
rates and encourage businesses to relocate into the 
retail core.  

Anti-social behaviour in the town centre is a concern 
of many businesses who often do not feel safe.

4. Would you vote YES to 
keep Barrow BID for a 2nd 
term?

80% of respondents stated that they 
would vote YES to a 2nd term with 
14% stating they would need more 
information before making a decision 
and 6% stated they would vote NO.

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1918

Further Consultation
As well as the business satisfaction survey 
detailed above, Barrow BID has conducted 
a series of consultations across our 1st 
term which has enabled us to engage with 
businesses and organisations within the BID 
area and discuss their ideas on how to 
regenerate, revitalise and transform the BID 
area. 

Barrow BID uses the feedback from these 
consultations to build the Business Plan 
and to prioritise the projects, initiatives and 
events planned for the next term.

The Businesses that responded were very 
supportive and thought that Barrow BID 
would be needed more than ever to help 
the town centre recover from the effects of 
COVID. Discussions also highlighted some 
priorities for a second term which included:
  

 O Promotion of evening economy businesses 
and leisure facilities to contractors and 
visitors  

 O A desire for improved off-street and on-
street car parking 

 O Ways of tackling anti-social behaviour 
  

 O Promoting Barrow as a visitor destination 
and sign-posting them when they are 
here  

 O Creating more outside eating and 
drinking space 

 O Improving the festive lighting on Duke 
Street  

 O Engaging with businesses and improving 
communication

Consultations with BID levy paying 
businesses have included:

 O Charity and CIC email consultation 
survey 

 O Hospitality sector meeting 

 O Face to Face meetings with 
companies and organisations 
including; Opera Bingo, William Hill, 
Holiday Inn Express, Wetherspoons, 
Jeffersons, Lucidity Group, St Mary’s 
Hospice, Debenhams, M&S, Wilkos, 
Bon Marche, The Kings Arms, Boots 
& Manhattans, as well as others. 

 O Attendance at Market Liaison 
meetings to discuss the needs of 
market traders  

 O A series of open meetings at venues 
across the BID area 

 O Telephone and email communication 

 O Regular Facebook posts 

 O A series of newsletters which have 
been hand delivered to businesses 

 O A series of e-newsletters and e-shots 
using Mail Chimp 

 O Face to face consultation and emails 
with businesses in the new BID area

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1918

Proposed Priorities   
for 2021 – 2026

busier barrow 
To market and promote Barrow town centre 
as a destination for local residents and visitors 
offering a distinctive choice of retail, hospitality, 
leisure & entertainment. Improve parking, 
movement and access to reduce barriers into 
the town centre. Utilise technology to increase 
footfall and safeguard existing businesses.

Bounce Back 
To counteract the effects of the COVID pandemic 
and provide local businesses with the resources 
to survive, adapt and grow. To promote using 
‘local’ businesses and supporting ‘your’ town.

Better Barrow 
To improve the offer of the town centre and 
provide more reasons to visit. Transforming 
the town from being reliant on high street 
shopping to a mix of shopping, hospitality, living, 
working and playing. Increasing pride in the 
town centre via a programme of events and 
initiatives which will revitalise the town for future 
generations and attract a range of businesses 
and organisations to locate in the town centre.

Brighter Barrow 
To improve the visual aspect and environment of 
the town centre to create a positive impression 
and make the town more attractive to visitors 
and encourage them to return. Promote the 
town as a hub for art and culture which will 
inspire people and improve mental well-being.

Page 39

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2120

Map of the Proposed 
Barrow BID Area 

Existing streets in the Barrow BID Area 

Abbey Road, Allison Street, Buccleuch Street, 
Carlisle Street, Cavendish Street, Clifford Street, 
Cornwallis Street, Crellin Street, Dalkeith Street, 
Dalton Road, Duke Street, Emlyn Street, Fell 
Street, Field Street, Harley Street, Harrison 
Street, High Street, Hindpool Road, Holker Street, 
Manchester Street, Market Street, Michaelson 
Road, Oldham Street, Paradise Street, Paxton 
Street, Portland Walk, Preston Street, Ramsden 
Square, Rawlinson Street, School Street, Scott 
Street, Slater Street, St Vincent Street, Stephen 
Street, Strand and The Mall

Amended boundaries for the BID area 

The Barrow BID area will be extended to include 
Schneider Square and the Southern end of Duke 
Street to Ramsden Street. The new area reflects 
the local authority plans to develop major 
projects on this side of town and will enable us 
to work with businesses and create a gateway 
into the town centre from Buccleuch Dock. The 
extended area will bring five existing businesses 
into the Barrow BID area, increasing the total BID 
levy paying businesses to 461.

3
3

2

2

1

1

Page 40

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2120

4 b’s

bid

Page 41

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2322

To market and promote Barrow town centre as a destination for local residents and visitors 
offering a distinctive choice of retail, hospitality, leisure & entertainment. Improve parking, 
movement and access to reduce barriers into the town centre. Utilise technology to increase 
footfall and safeguard existing businesses.

busier barrow

The COVID pandemic has accelerated the impact 
on Barrow’s town centre with high street brands such 
as Debenhams, River Island, Topshop, Thorntons and 
Winfields closing their doors. Shopping trends have 
been changing for some time and footfall has been 
in decline so it is vital that Barrow BID promote the 
existing businesses and provide incentives to attract 
shoppers to the high street.

Barrow is ranked no.1 for its natural heritage in 
England, has over 60km of coastline and a range 
of attractions and places of interest. Barrow has the 
capacity to be marketed as a staycation destination 
with its close proximity to the Lake District, its range 
of activities and attractions and the quality of its 
hospitality infrastructure. By working in partnership 
with the local authority and partners we can promote 
Barrow as a destination town and attract more visitors.

Car parking is generally the biggest concern for local 
businesses who feel they aren’t on a level playing 
field with retail parks who have the advantage of 
free parking on their doorstep. In 2016 a parking and 
movement strategy commissioned by Cumbria County 
Council identified a list of schemes to improve access, 
parking and movement in the town for pedestrians, 
cyclists, vehicles and public transport.

Barrow does not have a dedicated app or loyalty 
scheme to encourage people to visit the town. The 
COVID pandemic has encouraged a wider section of 
the population to embrace technology and it will be 
key to the transformation of Barrow’s high street.

 O Promote the retail offer via a Christmas Shopping 
Guide which will showcase the range of national 
stores, independent retailers and market traders 
in the town. 

 O Utilise local and regional media to promote 
Barrow town centre and businesses to targeted 
audiences. 

 O Promote evening economy and leisure industry 
businesses to contractors and weekend visitors via 
a Night Out Guide which will provide information 
on bars, restaurants and leisure businesses within 
the town centre. 

 O Utilise the Visit Barrow brand to promote 
Barrow as a destination, highlighting our quality 
accommodation offer, town centre events and 
places of interest. 

 O Lobby the local authorities to create a town 
centre car park strategy and update car parking 
to satisfy the requirements of today’s car drivers. 

 O Lobby the local authorities and government to 
improve road, rail and public transport links into 
the town to encourage people to visit. 

 O Give businesses a voice on partnership led 
schemes like Town Deal and the LCWIP which 
focus on the development of walking and cycling 
infrastructure. 

 O Identify and launch an app based scheme to 
assist businesses.

The need

Key projects

Page 42

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2322

To improve the visual aspect and environment of the town centre to create a positive 
impression and make the town more attractive to visitors and encourage them to return. 
Promote the town as a hub for art and culture which will inspire people and  
improve mental well-being.

brighter barrow

The town is in need of some TLC, many 
commercial properties are dated and the  
COVID pandemic has seen an increase in 
vandalism and graffiti. 

Barrow has a rich creative culture and the 
town centre is home to some leading arts 
organisations, however, we don’t use the town 
centre to deliver arts and culture projects and 
initiatives, therefore the town centre is quite drab 
and sterile. The statues and artwork focus on the 
founding fathers and our shipbuilding heritage, 
but where is the creative inspiration for young 
people?

When you visit other towns and cities they have 
interesting courtyards and squares where people 
are performing or cooking. Barrow doesn’t have 
this type of space and therefore we lack the 
sounds, smells and entertainment that would 
enhance a visit to the town. 

Areas of the town are not cleaned to a high 
standard and Barrow town centre lacks green 
space. 

 O Enhance the festive experience with new 
lighting and music 

 O Improve empty commercial units with 
external enhancements  

 O Support the High Street Heritage Action 
Zone scheme to enhance commercial 
premises. 

 O Work with creative partners to enhance 
creativity and cultural activity in the town. 

 O Attract specialist markets to Barrow town 
centre. 

 O Identify areas of derelict or underused 
land, consult with businesses and the local 
community and design and implement urban 
regeneration schemes to enhance areas of 
the town and increase the offer to visitors. 

 O Enhance cleaning and planting over and 
above the baseline services provided by the 
local authorities.

The need

Key projects

Page 43

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2524

To improve the offer of the town centre and provide more reasons to visit. Transforming the 
town from being reliant on high street shopping to a mix of shopping, hospitality, living, 
working and playing. Increasing pride in the town centre via a programme of events  
and initiatives which will revitalise the town for future generations and attract a range  
of businesses and organisations to locate in the town centre.

better barrow

Barrow town centre has a limited calendar of 
events. Events provide an economic boost to the 
town centre and also engage with individuals 
who may have stopped visiting the town centre, 
increase pride in local people and change the 
perception of the town from the outside.

Large scale events can be used to promote 
Barrow as a visitor destination and support the 
town’s hospitality sector. Smaller, more regular 
events provide a reason for local people to visit 
the town and spend time (dwell) in the town 
centre. 

Barrow’s heritage buildings are often underutilised 
with upper floors falling into disrepair. 

The recent COVID pandemic has led to an 
increase in empty commercial units particularly in 
the ‘retail core’ of the town. 

Anti-social behaviour, vandalism, begging and 
minor offences have been magnified during 
the recent COVID pandemic and created an 
environment where people can feel intimidated or 
threatened.

Barrow town centre has historically had an over 
reliance on high street retail. In recent years it 
has lost its two anchor stores and a host of high 
street brands. The town centre needs to transform 
and develop a mix of retail, commercial leisure 
and residential to attract people.

Barrow’s night-time culture and evening economy 
used to be the envy of neighbouring towns, 
with people visiting from South Lakes and 
further afield to enjoy the diverse range of bars, 
restaurants and leisure businesses. Recent private 
investment has seen an upturn in the evening 
economy and further investment could make a 
real difference to the town and bring back the 
glory days of the 1990s.

 O Organise and manage a primary ‘Barrow’ 
event (Super Soapbox Challenge) 

 O Organise and manage an Easter event (Dino 
Day proposed for 2022) 

 O Enable the Festival of Transport Committee 
to take more responsibility for the summer 
event and provide financial support 

 O Support organisations with smaller, regular 
events 

 O Support the High Street Heritage Action 
Zone scheme 

 O Work with partners to tackle anti-social 
behaviour and social issues affecting the 
town centre. 

 O Sign up to the Completely Retail scheme to 
promote empty commercial units 

 O Investigate ways to use empty commercial 
units   

 O Work with private sector businesses and the 
local authority to create more pavement 
café areas like the ‘Garden Street Scheme’.

The need

Key projects

Page 44

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2524

To counteract the effects of the COVID pandemic and provide local businesses 
with the resources to survive, adapt and grow. To promote using ‘local’ businesses 
and supporting ‘your’ town.

bounce back

The COVID pandemic has accelerated the 
change in shopping habits and has driven more 
people to shop online or at Supermarkets.

An increase in the use of delivery services, 
particularly for takeaways has led to a further 
decrease in footfall and some cafes may have 
increased turnover due to the pandemic and will 
never re-open as a café, choosing to remain as 
a delivery business.

A lack of beer gardens and pavement cafes in 
the town has meant that many businesses have 
been unable to re-open using an outside area 
only.

 O Set up an adaptation and relocation grant 
scheme to safeguard existing businesses 
and provide them with incentives to grow or 
relocate into town centre premises. 

 O Identify training requirements for business 
owners and managers and deliver online 
and classroom based training to provide 
businesses with the skills they need to adapt. 

 O Review the need for online solutions to help 
businesses reach their customers.  

 O Assist businesses to create outside areas 
and pavement cafes and help with licencing 
applications. 

The need

Key projects

Page 45

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2726

The income required to deliver a 5 year programme of projects 
and activities within the Barrow BID area will be mostly, but 
not entirely, drawn from the BID Levy. This will be collected on 
behalf of the Barrow BID Company Limited by the local billing 
authority and collection agency for the Non-Domestic Rates, 
Barrow Borough Council.

^ BID levy at 100% (cash 
reserves are a contingency for 
fluctuations in the BID levy)  

* includes invoicing and 
collection fees by the Barrow 
Borough Council rates 
department set at £9,204pa

Financial Forecast

INCOME 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 TOTAL

BID Levy ^ £139,159 £139,159 £139,159 £139,159 £139,159 £695,795

Brought forward £210,000 £210,000

Sponsorship £35,000 £35,000 £35,000 £35,000 £35,000 £175,000

Other income £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £20,000

Total £1,100,795

EXPENDITURE 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 TOTAL

Busier Barrow £25,000 £25,000 £25,000 £25,000 £25,000 £125,000

Brighter Barrow £50,500 £50,500 £50,500 £50,500 £50,500 £247,500

Better Barrow £112,500 £112,500 £97,500 £97,500 £97,500 £510,000

Bounce Back £19,500 £15,500 £14,500 £12,000 £11,000 £68,000

Operational Costs * £24,136 £24,136 £24,136 £24,136 £36,136 £136,155

Cash Reserves £14,140 £14,140

Total £1,100,795

Who will pay the BID levy?

All non-domestic hereditaments 
in the Barrow BID area with a RV 
above £4,000 will have to pay the 
BID levy. 

Will I get a refund if I move 
out of my premises?

The BID levy is charged as at 1st 
September each year, therefore if 
you occupy premises in the BID 
area and have a RV of £4,000 or 
above, you will receive an invoice 
for the year and will be liable for 
the whole year.

Can I opt out or just not pay?

BIDs are voted in via a ballot and 
have a specified BID boundary. If 
you are within the BID area then 
you will be liable to pay the BID 
levy in the same way you are 
liable for non-domestic rates. 

How much will it cost? 

The BID levy will be calculated on 
your RV at the 1st September each 
year and invoices will be sent out 
around this time. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2726

Are there any reductions or relief 
schemes for the BID levy?

Yes, Barrow BID will be running a grant 
scheme where non-trading charities and 
CICs will be able to apply for 50% of their 
BID levy to be returned.

Other income

Barrow BID will not be limited to income 
derived from the BID Levy and can expect 
to raise further funds from: Voluntary 
contributions, advertising, ticket sales, 
grants and sponsorship.

Money brought forward
Our 2nd term budget shows monies carried 
forward from our 1st term at c£210,000. 
The balance has been created due to a number 
of factors, these being:

A full-time BID Manager was not appointed until 
mid-2018, nearly two years into the 1st term. 

Barrow BID planned to deliver a large scale urban 
regeneration project to regenerate an area of land 
adjacent to Sports Direct on Dalton Road however 
the project was cancelled in January 2021 due to 
the land being no longer available. 

The COVID pandemic has impacted on large scale 
events, resulting in £60,000 allocated to this project 
area not being spent.    

If you have any questions regarding 
the BID levy please contact the 
Barrow BID Manager at: 
07955 816000 | manager@barrowbid.co.uk

The money carried forward will enable more 
to be spent on projects proposed within the 
priority areas set out in this Business Plan for 
the new term. This will ensure that every project, 
initiative and event adds value to the town 
and local businesses rather than spending for 
“spending sake”.

Page 47

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2928

The BID Levy will be charged at 1.5% of the 
rateable value, based on the non-domestic 
ratings list as at the 1st September each 
year of the BID term. 

The term of Barrow BID will run from 1st 
September 2021 for 5 years until 31st August 
2026. 

The BID levy will be applied to all non-
domestic ratepayers of occupied or 
unoccupied property with a rateable value 
of £4,000 and above within the Barrow 
BID area at any time that the BID is in 
operation. 

Landlords will be liable for unoccupied 
properties.

There will be no VAT charged on the BID 
levy. 

Non-trading charities and CICs will be able 
to apply to Barrow BID for 50% of their BID 
levy to be returned in the form of a grant.

Hereditaments below £4,000 RV will be 
exempt from the BID levy but can choose 
to become a voluntary member to take 
advantage of the benefits of being a BID 
levy payer.

The BID levy is set on a chargeable day for 
the year and no refunds will be given for 
businesses who leave the BID area part way 
through a BID year.

The existing recovery procedures for the 
standard non-domestic Rates bill will be 
utilised for any non-payment of the BID levy. 

There are no costs relating to the 
development of the new BID term which will 
need to be repaid during the term. 

The BID levy will be used to fund the 
delivery of initiatives as outlined in this 
Business Plan or other activities of benefit 
to Barrow town centre which are responsive 
to emerging priorities and approved by the 
Barrow BID board. 

Notice of the intention to hold a ballot has 
been given to the Secretary of State and 
Barrow Borough Council. 

For the purposes of definition the term 
‘Renewal’ in regard to the Barrow BID 
means replacement of the existing BID at 
the end of its current term (August 31st 
2021) with a new arrangement covering an 
extended area illustrated by the ‘BID Area’ 
map and which will be subject to the rules 
and arrangements herein. 

The streets and hereditaments within the BID 
area may alter due to changes in the local 
ratings list. Hereditaments may be included 
if their rateable value — at any time during 
the BID period — is increased to £4,000 or 
over, or they are newly added to the local 
list and the rateable value threshold criteria 
(as set out in the above response to point 1 
(1) (d) of schedule 1 of the BID regulations) 
is exceeded. 

Hereditaments may also be excluded from 
the BID levy charge in those cases where 
properties are removed from the local 
list or drop below a rateable value of 
£4,000Where this occurs such amendments 
will be adjusted from the effective date 
notified by the Valuation Office.

BID Levy Rules

Page 48

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2928

The BID’s projects and services will be 
entirely additional to statutory services 
already delivered by Barrow Borough 
Council or Cumbria County Council. Your 
money will not be used to pay for any 
services that the council has a statutory 
duty to provide. This will be monitored 
through a baseline agreement with Barrow 
Borough Council detailing the existing level 
of service provided by them. 
BID funding may be used to work in 
partnership with the local authority or any 
other authority to add value and extend 
existing initiatives to provide added benefits 
to the town centre. In accordance with the 
statutory requirements for BID renewals the 
proposals set out in this Business Plan were 
put before Barrow Borough Council elected 
members and management team and 
received approval.

Barrow BID will enter into an operating 
agreement with the Barrow Borough 
Council Rates department for invoicing and 
collection of the BID levy. The operating 
agreement will also include monitoring 
of Barrow BID by the local authority to 
ensure that it operates within the rules and 
regulations for BIDs and delivers on its aims 
and objectives as set out in the business 
plan. 

The BID levy will be collected on behalf of 
Barrow BID by Barrow Borough Council. In 
compliance with the Business Improvement 
Districts (England) Regulations 2004, the 
levy funds will be placed into a ring-fenced 
‘Revenue Account’ and transferred to the 
Barrow BID Company for the purposes of 
delivering the Barrow BID business plan.

The BID arrangements may be altered 
without an Alteration Ballot in the following 
instances: – 

Alterations do not alter the geographical 
area of the BID 
Alterations do not alter the BID levy 
payable 
Alterations do not conflict with the Local 
Government Act (2003) or The Business 
Improvement District Regulations (2004) 

Provided that the BID is meeting its overall 
objectives, the Board shall have the ability 
to vary service delivery and expenditure 
allocation according to the changing 
demands of BID Levy Payers and budget 
available.

Baseline Services

Operating Agreement

Alteration/Variation

Page 49

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3130

What happens if Barrow 
doesn’t have a BID?
If you vote NO to Barrow BID, or don’t vote at all, it could mean

no ...more signs promoting the 
town & businesses

no ...more new Christmas Lights and a  
reduced festive experience

no ...town trails and activities to 
bring families into the town

no ...more Super Soapbox and less 
town centre events

no ...Visit Barrow brand

no ...‘Garden Street’ scheme

no ...more FREE parking days 
or parking schemes to attract   
shoppers

no ...more marketing and promotion   
of Barrow town centre or the   
businesses within the town

no ...voice for businesses on partnership 
led programmes

no ...more tidying of empty units and 
the streetscape

no ...local, passionate business people 
coming together for the good of 
YOUR town

no ...‘bounce back’ strategy to  
safeguard, adapt and grow  
businesses

no ...COVID support or guidance

no ...more grant schemes for businesses

no ...more co-ordinated lobbying of   
your local MP to reduce business  
rates, improve public transport   
and enhance town centre  access  
and movement

Page 50

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3130

VOTE YES
barrow bid

Barrow BID remain passionate about 
revitalising, regenerating and transforming 
Barrow town centre. We believe that 
businesses in Barrow town centre deserve 
better and we aim to deliver on priorities 
which you have brought to our attention. 
We have a strong board of directors made 
up from a diverse range of businesses 
and organisations who are determined 
to make a real difference in their town. 

Look out for your ballot paper in the 
post with the Barrow BID logo on the 
envelope, then simply vote YES to Barrow 
BID and let us deliver on our promises.

With your support, Barrow BID will…

Deliver quality initiatives, projects and  
events which offer return on investment

Remain proactive and responsive 
to changing circumstances

Always have local businesses 
best interests at heart

Provide a voice for local businesses

Promote Barrow as the hub 
of the local community

Work in partnership with public 
sector, private sector &   
3rd sector organisations

Communicate with you and engage 
with you on key decisions

Deliver on our four main aims

Page 51

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3332

HOW to vote?
The vote will be via a postal ballot which 
will take place between 28th May and 
24th June 2021. Results will be announced 
by 5.00pm on Friday 25th June 2021. 

All defined business ratepayers with a 
rateable value of £4,000 or above in the 
BID area will be given the opportunity to 
vote during the formal ballot period. 
Each ratepayer will be entitled to one 
vote per hereditament on which a BID 
levy would be paid. It will be possible to 
appoint a proxy to vote on your behalf and 
information on how to do so will be included 
with the ballot information sent to you. 

The ballot will be a confidential postal 
ballot managed by Civica Election Services. 
Look out for the ballot papers coming 
through your door in May with the 
Barrow BID logo on the envelope and 
make sure you place your vote to be 
certain that your voice is heard. 

Any ballot queries or missing ballot papers 
should be brought to the attention of 
Barrow BID as soon as possible on 
manager@barrowbid.co.uk or 07955 816000.

Page 52

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3332

every vote 
matters

Our BID proposal can only go forward if you choose to reinstate us. Our 
plans for Barrow aim to improve the town for everyone, but if not enough 
people vote then we will be unable to do that. We need your support, so 
that we can support your town.  

Vote between 28th May and 24th June and have your voice heard. 
The decision is yours.

No one should believe their vote won’t make a difference.
This only happens with you. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3434

BBID TERM2 SUMMARY BUSINESS PLAN FINAL | 12/05/21 | AUTHOR: CG

Page 54

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday, 7 December 2022 

Performance Management Q2 2022-2023  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report contains the cumulative service performance information for April to 

September 2022. 

 

1.2 Quarter 2 is rated against a red, amber, green scale that is described within the 

report and shall be added to the Service Performance Framework.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 

1. Receive the report; 

2. Agree that the red, amber, green scale is added to the Service 

Performance Framework. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The cumulative service performance information for April to September 2022 is 

presented as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2 The performance is reported quarterly and a red, amber, green (RAG) rating has 

been applied to indicate where performance is of concern. 

 

3.3 The scale applied to award the RAG rating is: 

 

 +/- under 10% - green 

 +/- between 10% and 20% - amber 

 +/- 20% or more – red 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



3.4 Where performance is rated amber or red, then an explanation will be provided 

in the quarterly report for consideration and to identify any actions. 

 

3.5 It is proposed that the RAG rating is added to the Service Performance 

Framework and that will include clarification of the comparative, for example, 

some of the indicators can be measured against each quarter to see 

progressions, but others such as the collection of local taxes are best compared 

with the same period the previous year. 

 

3.6 The Forum indicator is for show/performance attendance.  The Head of Visitor 

Economy and Culture has also reported that the external events, Jubilee party, 

pride, and unity that the Forum supported attracted more than 20,000 people, 

and the Autumn programme has many sell out performances. 

 

3.7 Waste containers delivered within 7 days – good performance would be a high 

percentage of containers delivered within 7 days.  Issues with performance 

during the April to September period have been recognised and improvements 

will be apparent from October onwards. 

 

3.8 Corporate complaints dealt with in the timescale – this has improved from 

quarter 1 and will continue to be monitored. 

 

3.9 Average time to process new housing benefit claims and claim changes – good 

performance would be a low number of days.  As previously reported the claims 

remaining on housing benefit are complex and relate to supported 

accommodation and temporary accommodation; the service is also managing 

staff shortages through external support.  The number of days has increased 

during quarter 2 due to additional service pressures: 

 

 Housing Benefit Assurance Process – this is a mandatory DWP duty which is 

a comprehensive review of several claims, including visits and interviews.  

The samples are supported accommodation claims, flagged for various 

reasons and the Council must comply with the evidence requirements and 

justify the decisions that have been made. 

 Housing Subsidy Claims – the DWP claims for 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 are 

subject to audit and a large volume of claims are tested.  Where the 

determinations or evidence relied upon is queried, this goes to the Service to 

respond. 

 Delivery of the mandatory and discretionary Energy Rebate Schemes and 

compliance with government reporting. 

 

3.10 Long and short term sickness averaged per employee are both higher than the 

same point in the year in 2021.  The detailed quarterly analysis will be 

considered by the Senior Management Team. 

 

3.11 It is hoped that the percentages of assisted list collections missed, and general 

containers missed will be updated at the meeting. 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



3.12 The percentage of household recycling remains outstanding, and officers are 

progressing the data requests. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The report is for noting. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Service performance is cross-cutting and supports all of the Council Plan 

Priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no direct financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no implications to raise. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 There are no equality or diversity implications from the recommendation. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Inadequate service 

performance and service 

provision. 

Impact on customers; 

reputational risk. 

Regular monitoring to 

understand 

performance, and 

positive action to 

address performance. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Performance Monitoring 2022-2023 

   

Page 57

Agenda Item 9

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Performance Monitoring 2022-2023 
 

  2022-2023 Cumulative 

Indicator Aiming for: Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Major planning application decisions determined within 13 weeks Higher % 73.6% 76.2%   

Other planning application decisions determined within 8 weeks Higher % 74.2% 75.8%   

Food safety inspections Delivering the Food Standards Agency Recovery Plan. 

Forum theatre attendance Higher numbers 12,716 18,684   

Disabled facilities grants awarded Higher numbers 41 73   

Playground maintenance inspections Higher % 100% 100%   

Waste containers delivered within 7 working days Higher % Unavailable 34.8%   

Assisted list waste collections missed Lower % TBC TBC   

Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being reported Higher % Unavailable 8%   

Missed waste or recycling collections Lower % TBC TBC   

Percentage of household waste sent for recycling Higher % Unavailable Unavailable   

Corporate complaints dealt with within timescale Higher % 75% 83%   

Average time to process new housing benefit claims Lower number of days 27.4 days 40.1 days   

Average time to process housing benefit claims changes Lower number of days 10.5 days 13.4 days   

Council tax collected Higher % 28.6% 56.8%   

Business rates collected Higher % 34.4% 63.2%   

Long term sickness averaged per employee Lower number of days 2.7 days 5.3 days   

Short term sickness averaged per employee Lower number of days 0.5 days 1.4 days   
NB: presented to one whole decimal place. P

age 59

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 7 December, 2022 

Work Programme Update 

 
 

Report from:   Scrutiny & Democratic Services Team Leader 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 Work Groups have been established to review the topics identified in the 

2022/2023 Work Programme.  A summary of the progress made in respect of each 

topic is detailed below. 

 

2.0    Recommendation  

2.1 Members are requested to note the updates on progress and consider 

whether further action is required. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Flood Work Group Update 

 

 At the previous meeting the Head of Programme Management and Climate 

Change had provided a briefing note for Members including details of the Cumbria 

Coastal Strategy.  A concern had been raised over South Walney being recorded 

as ‘No active intervention’ as there was well established coastal erosion problems 

on South Walney and the sea cuts right across the Nature Reserve.   

 

 This query had been fed back to the relevant Officer who has advised that both 

the Walney Island Strategy and the Cumbria Coastal Strategy agree with the 

Shoreline Management Plan policy that South Walney (from Haw Hill on the west 

coast, anticlockwise to Creepshaw Marsh on the east coast) is recorded as ‘No 

active intervention’, mainly due to the fact that very few properties were at risk of 

flooding or erosion over the Strategy’s 100-year timescale.  The ‘No active 

intervention’ policy does not preclude private defences being constructed, subject 

to the necessary permissions/licences. 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



3.2 Discretionary Housing Payments 

 

 This review has now been completed by way of a recommendation to the 

Executive Committee, going to their meeting on 14th December 2022, to send a 

letter to the Secretary of State, the Chief Executive of Westmorland and Furness 

Shadow Authority and the local MP (cc’d to the Leader of Westmorland and 

Furness Shadow Authority), requesting that consistent Local Housing Allowance 

(LHA) rates be applied across the three areas of Barrow, South Lakeland and 

Eden. 

  

3.3 Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and Action Plan 

 

 The Head of People and Communities, along with a representative from the Police 

have been invited to attend the meeting to provide the Committee with an update. 

 

3.4 Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 

 

 The Work Group met with the Public Protection Manager on 18th November 

where the following update had been provided:- 

 

 Nationally 

 1 in 40 people had covid but case numbers were decreasing; and 

 Hospital admissions and mortality rates were decreasing. 

 

Locally 

 Case numbers had been decreasing since mid-October; 

 Vaccine rates in Cumbria were better than other areas with 64% of over 

50’s having received their Booster;  

 Hospital admissions were stable across Cumbria; and 

 More elderly people had tested positive, probably due to testing in care 

homes. 

 

The Council had run a social media campaign for covid and flu vaccinations. 

 

3.5 Barrow BID 

 

 The Head of Regeneration and the BID Manager have been invited to present a 

report to the Committee.  The report is covered under a separate agenda item.  

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 We do not need to undertake a consultation at this stage. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Additional information is required before we can consider alternative options. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

Page 62

Agenda Item 10



6.1 The Scrutiny Work Programme covers all of the Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 
No – This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A N/A N/A 

 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

     pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

N/A N/A 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

Page 63

Agenda Item 10

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

. 

Barrow Borough Council 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

7 December 2022 

 Memorial Bench Policy 

 
 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

 

This report asks Overview and Scrutiny Committee to comment on the attached 

revised Barrow Borough Council Memorial Bench Policy for Barrow owned 

Cemeteries and other land owned by the Council.   

 

2.0 Recommendation  

 

(i) It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider 

and provide any comment on the attached revised Memorial Bench 

Policy and make recommendations to Executive Committee for 

adoption. 

 

3.0 Background and Current Position 

 

3.1 Executive Committee on 10th November 2021 agreed a set of guidelines for the 

installation of memorial benches on Council owned land. 

3.2 A review of the Policy was incorporated into the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee work programme on the 10th November 2022 the Memorial Bench 

Work Group discussed the Memorial Bench Policy and recommended the 

following changes. 

(i)  Due to the volume of memorial benches already in place, no new 
benches should be permitted around the coastline of Walney Island. 

(ii) When applying for a bench customers will be informed that planting or 
placing tributes around the bench is not permitted.  Any tributes placed 
around the bench will be removed. 

(iii) The bench will be recycled plastic as opposed to hardwood 
(iv) Any unauthorised benches will be removed. 

(v) The fee is subject to any annual increase in line with the Council’s fees 

and charges. 

3.3  The amendments have been incorporated into a revised Policy and if Members 

agree them, then they are asked to recommend them to Executive Committee 

   

Report from:   Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Report Author:  Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Wards:    All Wards 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



for adoption.  The current policy dated November 2021 and the proposed 

revised policy dated December 2022 are attached at Appendix 1 and 2. 

4 Consultation  

4.1 Any comments and recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
will be included in the Executive Committee report.   

 
4.2 If adopted the policy will be displayed on the Council website and customer 

services will be made aware of this to inform customers.  Ward Members will be 
encouraged to let residents know of this new policy.   

 
5.0 Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative option is not to make any revisions to the policy.  This is not 

recommended as the revised policy sets out clearer guidelines with regards to 

the location and the type of bench permitted. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council Plan key priority is to ensure that residents are at the heart of all 
that the Council does and that the environment is clean, green and well 
managed.  The provision of standardised memorial benches with the opportunity 
to personalise plaques will directly contribute to that.   

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The ordering of the benches will be on receipt of payment.  There is no 

cancellation of order provision after signing the agreement.      

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 Members of the public should be informed and agree from the outset that the 

bench will be removed if it comes into disrepair and is no longer safe to the 

public. 

7.3  Local Government Reorganisation 

 There are no implications for Local Government Reorganisation.  

7.4 Equality and Diversity   

7.4.1 All benches will be DDA compliant.  

7.5 Risk 

7.5.1 The demand for benches may outstrip the available locations.  A further piece 

of work if capacity of Officers allow may be to determine whether any of the 

existing benches have gone beyond their lifespan or are beyond repair and 

damaged.  On a case by case basis any existing benches which are deemed to 

be beyond repair will be removed.  Families would need to apply under the new 

policy for a replacement which would be a standard bench.   

 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Chris Pollard:  Cemetery and Crematorium Manager 

                          crpollard@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Page 66

Agenda Item 11

mailto:crpollard@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Memorial Bench Policy – November 2021 

 

2 Memorial Bench Policy – December 2022 

 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

 

Memorial Bench Policy 

 

 

 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Memorial Bench Policy 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Memorial Bench Policy 

Version: 18102021 

Author: Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Approved by: Executive Committee 

Date Approved: November 2021 

Review Date: November 2024 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



1. Introduction 

1.1 This policy sets out the policy of the Council for the installation of memorial 

benches on Barrow BC land and cemeteries.   

 

2. Policy Content 

2.1 The bench and plaque can only be purchased through the Council; customers 

are not permitted to supply their own benches or plaques.  The description and cost 

of the bench and plaque should be made known to the customer before purchasing. 

The benches are a standard size and four feet in width and hardwood construction.  

 

2.2  No unique designs can be requested.   

 

2.3  Benches will be allowed in any area of the cemeteries but must not infringe on 

other graves or memorials.   

 

2.4 Benches on Barrow BC owned land outside of the cemeteries will be 

considered against the following criteria: 

 

• Only sites which do not have a sufficient number of benches will be 

considered.  These will be areas which lack any benching nearby or are 

at a likely stopping point such as a beautiful view or a restpoint. 

 

• Locations will be chosen to minimise maintenance and vandalism.  

Remote locations with poor access for maintenance and repairs will not 

be considered.  

 

 

 

2.5 The location of the bench must be approved by the Council for all benches on 

Barrow BC land.  The decision by the Council is final.   

  

2.6 The customer must complete an application form and pay for the bench before 

ordering.  All benches will be ordered at the end of each month.  The signing of the 

application is formal confirmation of responsibility for the bench for the length of the 

lease.   

 

2.7 Purchase of the bench will be for five years only, after which time it may be 

removed by the Council.  There will be an option to renew the lease if the bench is in 

suitable condition and the view of the Council that it could last another five years.  The 

cost will include the bench, plaque, installation, surfacing and minimal maintenance.  

All repairs and maintenance will be organised through the Council. Under normal 

usage, the bench should present no risk.  Liability cannot be accepted for improper 

Commented [CP1]: The revised policy states that the 
benches be of recycled material as opposed to hardwood 

Commented [CP2]: The revised policy has the addition 
that due to the current volume benches will not be 
permitted around the coast line of Walney Island. 

Commented [CP3]: The revised policy states that any 
unauthorised benches will be removed. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



use.  The Council cannot guarantee against theft or vandalism and will not be able to 

replace either the bench or the plaque in this event.   

 

2.8 The benches should require minimal maintenance, but a small amount is 

included to cover this in the purchase price. This will involve occasionally removing 

built up algae and grime, removal of graffiti and repairing minor faults within resources 

available.     

 

2.9 To ensure installation is undertaken safely to the required standards, the 

Council will provide and install the memorial bench with plaque and surfacing in all 

cases.   

 

2.10 At the end of five years customers have the option of purchasing a new 

memorial bench.  (The Council reserve the right to repair/remove benches as 

necessary should they fall into disrepair or are damaged during this period).   

 

2.11 The details of the bench will be entered into the Memorial Register. 

3. Process for getting agreement and paying for a bench 

 

3.1 The process to make an enquiry to purchase a bench and have one installed is 

as follows: 

(i) Customer enquiries about installing a bench are directed to the website 

page to view the guidelines in the policy and to download an application 

form.  An application form can also be posted out if that is easier. 

(ii) Customer completes the application form and must specify where they 

would wish a bench to be installed.  They should also specify what they 

would wish to include on the plaque with a maximum of 70 letters.  This 

form should be emailed back to:    cemetery@barrowbc.gov.uk 

(iii) The requested location for the bench will be considered in consultation 

with the relevant Council departments who will apply the guidelines for 

whether a memorial bench is suitable in this location.  If the requested 

location is not suitable, the nearest alternative location will be offered. 

 

(iv) The Council will ensure that the plaque wording is suitable for use on a 

public bench.   

 

(v) The Council will then contact the customer to confirm or discuss the 

details.  Communication will be by phone or email.  If an alternative 

location is required, a letter with a map to illustrate the alternative site 

will be sent. 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



(vi) On agreement, a standard agreement letter will be sent to the customer 

to confirm arrangements and request payment.   

 

(vii) When payment is received, the Council will order the purchase and 

installation of the memorial bench for completion within three months of 

payment. It will place orders at the end of a month.    

 

(viii) The Council will ensure that the work is carried out as specified and will 

photograph the bench and ensure that all information is recorded on the 

Barrow BC asset management system for future reference.   

 

(ix) The Council will ensure that a letter and photograph are sent by post or 

email to the customer to notify them that the bench is in place.   

 

3.2 Although this policy applies to the installation of new memorial benches, 

where existing benches are deemed past their lifespan and are not repairable, 

they will be removed and the new policy for consistency will apply.   

 

4. Seat Specification 

 

4.1 The seat will be in recycled plastic and be 4 feet in width. (See appendix 1) 

The Council will arrange for the seat to be fixed in place at the appropriate 

location. 

 

4.2 The current fee for a memorial seat including a plaque is £680.00. 

 

 

5. Policy Review 

 

5.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years.  The next review date is 

November 2024.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commented [CP4]: An addition to the policy states that 
customers are not permitted to place tributes or plant 
around the bench.  Any tributes will be removed. 

Commented [CP5]: The fee is subject to any annual 
increase in line with the Council’s fees and charges. 

Page 72

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Memorial Bench Policy 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Memorial Bench Policy 

Version: 7.12.2022 

Author: Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Approved by: Executive Committee 

Date Approved:  

Review Date:  

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



1. Introduction 

1.1 This policy sets out the Council procedure for the installation of memorial 

benches on Barrow BC land and cemeteries.   

 

2. Policy Content 

2.1 The bench and plaque can only be purchased through the Council; customers 

are not permitted to supply their own benches or plaques.  The description and cost 

of the bench and plaque should be made known to the customer before purchasing. 

The benches are a standard size and four feet in width and constructed of recycled 

material. 

 

2.2  No unique designs can be requested.   

 

2.3  Benches will be allowed in any area of the cemeteries but must not infringe on 

other graves or memorials.   

 

2.4 Benches on Barrow BC owned land outside of the cemeteries will be 

considered against the following criteria: 

 

 Only sites which do not have a sufficient number of benches will be 

considered.  These will be areas which lack any benching nearby or are 

at a likely stopping point such as a beautiful view or a restpoint. 

 

 Locations will be chosen to minimise maintenance and vandalism.  

Remote locations with poor access for maintenance and repairs will not 

be considered. 

 

 Due to the volume of memorial benches already in place, no new 

benches will be permitted around the coastline of Walney Island. 

 

2.5 The location of the bench must be approved by the Council for all benches on 

Barrow BC land.  The decision by the Council is final.  Any unauthorised benches 

which are installed once the policy is approved will be removed.  The Cemeteries and 

Crematorium Manager is the officer who approves the position of the bench. 

  

2.6 The customer must complete an application form and pay for the bench before 

ordering.  All benches will be ordered at the end of each month.  The signing of the 

application is formal confirmation of responsibility for the bench for the length of the 

lease.   

 

2.7 Purchase of the bench will be for five years only, after which time it may be 

removed by the Council.  There will be an option to renew the lease if the bench is in 

Page 76

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



suitable condition and the view of the Council that it could last another five years.  The 

cost will include the bench, plaque, installation, surfacing and minimal maintenance.  

All repairs and maintenance will be organised through the Council. Under normal 

usage, the bench should present no risk.  Liability cannot be accepted for improper 

use.  The Council cannot guarantee against theft or vandalism and will not be able to 

replace either the bench or the plaque in this event.   

 

2.8 The benches should require minimal maintenance.  

 

2.9 To ensure installation is undertaken safely to the required standards, the 

Council will provide and install the memorial bench with plaque and surfacing in all 

cases.   

 

2.10 At the end of five years customers have the option of renewing the lease or 

purchasing a new memorial bench.  (The Council reserve the right to repair/remove 

benches as necessary should they fall into disrepair or are damaged during this 

period).   

 

2.11 The details of the bench will be entered into the Memorial Register. 

3. Process for getting agreement and paying for a bench 

 

3.1 The process to make an enquiry to purchase a bench and have one installed is 

as follows: 

(i) Customer enquiries about installing a bench are directed to the website 

page to view the guidelines in the policy and to download an application 

form.  An application form can also be posted out if that is easier. 

(ii) Customer completes the application form and must specify where they 

would wish a bench to be installed.  They should also specify what they 

would wish to include on the plaque with a maximum of 70 letters.  This 

form should be emailed back to:    cemetery@barrowbc.gov.uk 

(iii) The requested location for the bench will be considered in consultation 

with the relevant Council departments who will apply the guidelines for 

whether a memorial bench is suitable in this location.  If the requested 

location is not suitable, the nearest alternative location will be offered. 

 

(iv) The Council will ensure that the plaque wording is suitable for use on a 

public bench.   

 

(v) The Council will then contact the customer to confirm or discuss the 

details.  Communication will be by phone or email.  If an alternative 

location is required, a letter with a map to illustrate the alternative site 

Page 77

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



will be sent. 

 

(vi) On agreement, a standard agreement letter will be sent to the customer 

to confirm arrangements and request payment.   

 

(vii) When payment is received, the Council will order the bench and 

arranging for installation on arrival. 

 

(viii) The Council will ensure that the work is carried out as specified and will 

photograph the bench and ensure that all information is recorded on the 

Barrow BC asset management system for future reference.   

 

(ix) The Council will ensure that a letter and photograph are sent by post or 

email to the customer to notify them that the bench is in place.   

 

(x) When applying for a bench the customer will be informed that planting 

or placing tributes around the bench is not permitted.  Any tributes placed 

around the bench will be removed. 

 

3.2 Although this policy applies to the installation of new memorial benches, 

where existing benches are deemed past their lifespan and are not repairable, 

they will be removed and the new policy for consistency will apply.   

 

 

4. Seat Specification 

 

4.1 The seat will be in recycled plastic and be 4 feet in width. (See appendix 1) 

The Council will arrange for the seat to be fixed in place at the appropriate 

location. 

 

4.2 The current fee for a memorial seat including a plaque is £680.00.  This fee is 

subject to any annual increase in line with the Council’s fees and charges. 

 

 

5. Policy Review 

 

5.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years.  The next review date is 

November 2025.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 7 December, 2022 

Catering and Cleaning Contract Management Report  

 
 

Report from:   Sandra Baines Head of Culture and the Visitor 

Economy  

Report Author:  Sandra Baines  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the agreed terms of reference 

for the quarterly contract monitoring review and Key performance indicators 

(KPI’s) used to monitor the catering and cleaning contract at the Forum and Dock 

Museum.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Committee: - 

  

1) Approve quarterly contract review terms of reference  

 

2) Approve the KPI’s currently being used  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The formal agreement for the catering and cleaning provision at the Forum & Dock 

Museum, along with catering in the Town Hall came to an end in 2019. At previous 

Executive Committee meetings, approval had been sought to extend the current 

Catering Contract to allow for a new contract to be drawn up and advertised. The 

new agreement was for the Catering & Cleaning Contract at the forum and Dock 

Museum only. 

 

3.2 In accordance with the Council’s procurement policy the contract was advertised 

on the chest on the 14 February 2020. A bidder’s day took place on 26 February 

2020 and the final submission date for tenders was 24 March 2020.  Due to Covid-

19, a request was made from one of the bidders to extend the final submission 

date. This was agreed and the deadline was extended to 17 April 2020. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 12



3.3 The new contract was awarded to Elior, commencing on 1 March 2021 until 28 

February 2026 with the option of a three-year extension. 

 

3.4 Elior pay the Council on the first anniversary of the agreement and annually 

thereafter either; a % of annual net sales or a fixed sum whichever is the higher. 

The combined annual fixed cost of the cleaning services at the Forum and Dock 

Museum is fixed for the duration of the contract. A contribution to utility & property 

insurance costs is paid annually.  

 

Contract Management  

 

3.5 Weekly, monthly and quarterly meetings are held with Elior. Agreed KPI’s, 

Appendix 1, are carried out quarterly by the Head of Culture and Visitor Economy 

and a representative from Elior. The agreed terms of reference are adhered to, 

Appendix 2 

 

3.6 The agreed KPI’s are used to measure the performance of the Services. 

Consistent failure to meet 5 or more of the Target KPIs labelled "Not Happening” 

in a rolling 3-month period or 10 or more Target KPIs labelled "Unsatisfactory" in 

a rolling 6-month period may result in an improvement notice being issued, as 

detailed in the agreement.  

 

3.7      Should there be inconsistency or concerns in the delivery of the services these 

are discussed with Elior at a local level and agreed improvement plans are put in 

place. If at the quarterly review meeting there is still cause for concern, 

appropriate action is taken, and a further review is carried out 28 days later.  

 

3.8      At the quarterly review held in October 2022 Elior reported “the last 3 months of 

trading have proved very challenging across the hospitality trade. Despite this both 

Cafes at the Forum and Dock have traded well. Sales are matching those of 2019 

and there is more interest coming in for future events”. 

 

3.9     Recruitment is proving challenging and staffing levels are low, Elior are looking at 

different options, apprenticeships and NVQ's.  

 

 

 

4.0  Alternative Options  

4.1 KPI’s are monitored and amended if necessary.  

 

5.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

5.1 The contract monitoring and KPI’s will help to deliver the Council’s Place Priority 

as the Forum and Dock Museum are seen as a destination of choice for leisure, 

culture and sport. 

 

 

6.0 Implications  

Page 82

Agenda Item 12



6.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

6.1.1 No financial implications are associated with the proposals set out in this report. 

 

6.1.2 The Income received from Elior is verified by the Council’s accountant. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 No legal implications are associated with the proposals set out in this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The Contract Management of the catering and cleaning contract will have no 

impact on Local Government Reorganisation.  

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 
 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Not to approve the KPI’s  Contract not monitored 

effectively  

KPI’s reviewed 

throughout the life of the 

contract   

   

   

 

Contact Officers  

Sandra Baines sbaines@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Key performance indicators  

2 Terms of reference  

 

Background Documents Available - None  

Page 83

Agenda Item 12

mailto:sbaines@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



0 6 8 10
Category 

Total

A

B

C

D

E

F

What to Look For

Se
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

- 
R

es
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

ca
te

re
d

 m
ea

ls

Action Points and Comments

Customer experience

Ambience and atmosphere

Value for money experience

/60

WOW factor on arrival (inviting 

environment)

Quality of food and service at the 

time of audit

Presentation of food staff and 

beverages - including adequate 

supply of napkins, cutlery and 

condiments

Location: 

Month: 

Date:

Completed by: 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



A

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

Se
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

- 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

an
d

 H
o

sp
it

al
it

y
M

en
u

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

an
d

 Q
u

al
it

y
WOW factor on arrival (inviting 

environment)

Quality of food and service at the 

time of audit

Presentation of food and 

beverages

Customer experience

Previous customer experience

Value for money experience

/60

/60

Restaurant hot food choice/taste

restaurant healthy 

eating/seasonal/special diet 

standards

Resaurant/coffee bar product 

range as agreed - sufficient 

choice?

Overall hospitality provision - 

sufficient choice?

Multi-decks/counters full/neat 

and well presented?

All items available as described?

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



A

B

C

D

E

F

0 6 8 10
Category 

Total

A

B

C

D

E

F

C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
 L

ev
el

/60

Result of Elior's customer 

satisfaction survey?

Formal written 

complaints/compliments

Customer 1 feedback

Customer 2 feedback

Customer 3 feedback

Customer 4 feedback

Review of Elior monthly/annual 

food safety audit

Review of Elior monthly health 

and safety audit

What to Look For Action Points and Comments

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t,
 H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
af

et
y

High level of visual cleanliness 

FOH and BOH

/60

Star rating from EHO being 

maintained

Food policy and all records in 

place, i.e. Cleaning schedules, 

COSHH, pest control, etc.

All Critical Control Point daily 

food safety checks done?

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



A

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

/420

C
u

st
o

m
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 M

ar
ke

ti
n

g
Marketing obvious, loud and 

proud and in line with the 

marketing plan

/60

Marketing material - 

current/clear and visual

Staffing levels suitable for level 

of business FOH

Staff seen to be upselling

Menu accuracy/seplling, etc.

Promotional material current/up 

to date/effective

Review of actions from previous 

audits

Staff development - training, 

safety and wellbeing - review of 

records

Totals

Sc
o

p
e 

o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

) 

an
d

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce

Opening and service times as 

agreed?

/60

Tarrif compliance - as agreed at 

last review meeting

Retail/restaurant sales on 

target?

Hospitality and conference sales 

on target?

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



Signed(Elior):….........................................................Name:…...................................................................................Date:…............................

Signed(Auditor):….........................................................Name:…................................................................................Date:…............................

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Terms of Reference 

 

Quarterly Contract Meeting – Elior Catering and Cleaning Contract 

Terms of Reference 

1. To ensure contractual performance is in accordance with the signed contract and 

specification. 

2. To support a partnership approach to contract management and delivery.   

3. To ensure that the contract delivers best value and optimal financial performance. 

4. To provide a contract monitoring governance structure that allows for discussion around 

potential formal variations to the contract. 

5. To understand any significant risks and how the contractor has dealt with them.   

6. To agree any marketing and promotion and communication strategies and plans that will 

enable the Council and the contractor to achieve uptake in sales, performance and customer 

satisfaction. 

7. To discuss contract performance and for the contractor to provide improvements plans if 

needed.   

8. To provide a transparent structure that enables major issues to be resolved and to avoid 

where possible the Dispute Resolution procedure within the contract.   

9. To provide a forward (6months minimum) plan for contract delivery to maximise 

opportunities. 

10. To provide reassurance to the Council from the contractor that all regulatory and legislative 

matters are compliant and if not to ensure that they are raised and discussed.   

11. To consider the contractors report on a quarterly basis.  This to be received no later than 

three working days before the quarterly contract meeting.   

 

Membership of Group: 

Sandra Baines – Head of Culture and the Visitor Economy  

Lee Winter – Technical Manager the forum  

Calum McClaren – Operations Director, Elior 

Jill Farrell – Operations Manager – Elior 

Page 91

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

7 December 2022 

Cleaning of Public Conveniences, Bus Shelters and 

Stairwells Contract 2020 - 2022 

 
 

Report from:   Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Les Davies, Head of Asset Management 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Cleaning of Public Conveniences Contract (Bus Shelters and Stairwells) has 

been operating with the current contractor Growing Concerns (GC) since 1st April 

2020.  

 

1.2  The contract term ran until 31st March 2022. The current contractual arrangements 

are therefore rolling over and will be considered further by Westmorland and 

Furness Council. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1  It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the content 

of this report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 At its last meeting, Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to incorporate 

contract management assurance into its work programme. The Cleaning of Public 

Conveniences Contract relates to the provision of regular cleaning services and 

key-holding at Council-owned public conveniences (at Roa Island; Tudor Square, 

Dalton; Park Pavilion and Fell Street, Barrow; and Earnse Bay), the car park and 

stairwells on Portland Walk and 42 bus stops within the borough. 

3.2 The contract was tendered by an open advertisement on The Chest and Contracts 

Finder in September 2019.  

3.3 The contract began on 1st April 2020 for a term ending on 31st March 2022 with a 

total contract value of £147,000. The current contractual arrangements with GC 

are currently rolling over. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 13



3.4 The cleaning contract is managed by the Council’s Asset Management Team 

whose role is to ensure high standards of cleaning are maintained throughout the 

term of the contract.  

3.5 The contract contains elements of cleaning that includes the following standards: 

 

 Toilets and Conveniences  

o Standard 1 - Daily cleaning 

o Standard 2 - Weekly cleaning 

o Standard 3 - Monthly cleaning 

 

 External Cleaning 

o Standard 1 - Daily cleaning 

o Standard 2 - Weekly cleaning 

o Standard 3 - Monthly cleaning 

 

 Bus Shelters 

o Standard 1 - Daily cleaning 

o Standard 2 - Weekly cleaning 

o Standard 3 - Monthly cleaning 

3.6 At the present time there are no risk assessments or method statements, or 

progress/inspection reports available on file. Members of the Asset Management 

Team are in the process of establishing communication links with GC to ensure 

specifications are being met and the quality of work is carried out to a high 

standard.  

 

3.7 Whilst the contract terms and conditions can be varied by agreement, there have 

been no variations to the original contract terms and the contract currently does 

not contain any Key Performance Indicators.  There is also a need to ensure that 

active performance monitoring is undertaken.  

 

3.8 The Asset Management Team have recently taken ownership of this contract and 

are applying existing good practice in remedying the gaps in management 

arrangements.  

 

3.9 Given the closeness to Vesting Day and all of the preparation work that Local 

Government Reorganisation entails, this contract will continue to roll in the short 

term to ensure service continuity for day 1 of Westmorland and Furness Council.  

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1  Consultation is not applicable to this report as the report seeks to update Members 

on the contract management, monitoring and delivery arrangements.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1  This report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

Page 94

Agenda Item 13



6.1 The Cleaning of Public Conveniences Contract (Bus Shelters and Stairwells) 

contributes to the Council’s vision “For our Borough to be great place to live work 

and visit” and will assist the Council in meeting the Priority of Place to “Create a 

vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to live”. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

The Cleaning of Public Conveniences Contract (Bus Shelters and Stairwells) is 

wholly funded from the Council’s General Fund. 

 

7.2 Legal  

The report details the contractual arrangements to date. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

The contract will transfer to Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out for this report.  
 
Risk  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to meet statutory 
requirements with regard to 
health and safety of staff and 
residents with specific 
reference to hygiene 
requirements. 

The Council could be 
open to legal challenge 
which would incur costs 
outside existing budgets. 

Ensure appropriate 
contract in place to 
undertake maintenance 
works. 

 

Contact Officers  

Steph Cordon: scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Les Davies: ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 13

mailto:scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE  

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

7 December 2022 

Building Cleaning (Offices & Housing Common Areas) 

 
 

Report from:   Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Les Davies, Head of Asset Management 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Building Cleaning Contract (Offices and Housing common areas) has been 

operating with the current contractor Associated Cleaning Contractors (ACC) since 

1st April 2019.  

 

1.2  The existing contract with ACC is due to expire on 31st March 2023. 

 

1.3 The cleaning contract is managed by the Council’s Asset Management team who 

ensure regular office based and site-based meetings are held with ACC managers. 

Monthly progress reports are provided by ACC to report upon cleaning targets and 

contract timescales. 

 

1.4 The Asset Management team acknowledge the skills and diligence shown by ACC 

management and site-based operatives to ensure high standards of cleaning are 

maintained to Housing common areas and office spaces. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the 

content of this report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 At its last meeting, Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to incorporate contract 

management assurance into its work programme. The Building Cleaning Contract forms 

part of the Council’s routine maintenance of its housing stock and relates to the cleaning 

of stairwells, entrances and their peripheries within residential blocks of flats for the period 

April 2019–March 2023; together with the undertaking of periodic surveys to ensure the 

quality of the work and report on risks or hazards.  

Page 97

Agenda Item 14



3.2  The contract was awarded following a ‘selective tendering’ exercise.  The total award was 

for £177,701.56, which is raised from a specific charge placed upon residents of the 

properties. 

3.3 The existing contract with ACC was awarded on 1st April 2019 for 4 years. 

 

3.4 The cleaning contract is managed by the Council’s Asset Management Team whose 

role is to ensure high standards of cleaning are maintained throughout the term of the 

contract.  

 

3.5 The contract contains elements of cleaning that includes the following standards: 

 

 Remove dirt marks, dry polish 

 Warm wash with antibacterial disinfectant wash, dry polish  

 Remove debris, scrub clean excessive soiling, warm wash with germicidal 

detergent. Includes removing and cleaning under mats 

 Scavenge, clear of debris, sweep 

 Wash with neutral detergent, rinse & dry 

 Clear all debris and sweep 

 Wash with neutral detergent, rinse & dry 

 Clear debris 

3.6 Members of the Asset Management Team hold regular office-based and site-based 

meetings with ACC managers to ensure specifications are being met and the quality 

of work is carried out to a high standard.  

 

3.7 The contract risk assessments and methods statements are suitable and sufficient to 

ensure works on site are carried out safely and risks are minimised. This is particularly 

important in public areas and communal spaces. Signage, advising of potential slips, 

trips and falls are in place during and after completion of cleaning works and potentially 

hazardous chemicals are stored safely between use. 

 

3.8 ACC provide a monthly progress report to highlight performance against cleaning 

standards and contract timescales. A sample site inspection report is attached for 

Members’ information at Appendix 1. The contract does not contain any Key 

Performance Indicators. 

 

3.9 Customer complaints have been very low throughout the term of the contract. 

Complaints are dealt with promptly by ACC’s site manager and where necessary a 

member of the Asset Management Team visits site to liaise directly with the 

complainant. 
  

3.10 The Contractor tendered for the works on the basis of a unit price per site  address and 
this price covers the work outlined in the cleaning specification and associated health and 
safety requirements.  

 
3.11 The contract terms and conditions can be varied by agreement of both parties.  
 
3.12 The tendered hourly rates for ACC increased by 7.2% in April 2020 in line with the 
 Government’s  implementation of the National Living Wage  increase.  
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 14



3.13 A further hourly rate increase was agreed with ACC from 1st April 2022. This 
 increase aligned with the Government increase to the National Living/Minimum Wage 
 by 6.5% and introduced the new Health & Social Care Levy of 1.25%. 
 
3.14  Given the closeness to Vesting Day and all of the preparation work that Local Government 

Reorganisation entails, this contract is in the process of being extended for 12 months to 
ensure that further commitments can be made in light of the Westmorland and Furness 
Council service plans.  

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not applicable to this report as the report seeks to update Members 

on the contract management, monitoring and delivery arrangements.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 This report is presented for information.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The cleaning contract contributes to the Council’s vision “For our Borough to be 

great place to live work and visit” and will assist the Council in meeting the Priority 

of Place to “Create a vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to live”. 

 

7.0 Implications  

   Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1  The contract is funded primarily from the Housing Revenue Account with specific 

 elements of office cleaning charged to the Council’s General Fund. 

 

7.2 Legal  

 The report details the contractual arrangements to date.  
 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

           The contract will transfer to Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this report.  
 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to meet statutory 
requirements with regard to 
health and safety of staff and 
residents with specific 
reference to hygiene 
requirements. 

The Council could be 
open to legal challenge 
which would incur costs 
outside existing budgets. 

Ensure appropriate 
contract in place to 
undertake maintenance 
works. 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 14



Contact Officers  

Steph Cordon; scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Les Davies: ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Site Report Information 

 

 

  

Page 100

Agenda Item 14

mailto:scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1 
 

Example – Site Specific Report from ACC 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont … 

Page 101

Agenda Item 14



 

 

Page 102

Agenda Item 14



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

7 December 2022 

Grounds Maintenance & Playgrounds Contract 

 
   

Report from:  

 

Head of Operational Services 

Report Author:  Head of Operational Services 

 

Wards:  All  

 

  

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  At its last meeting Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to incorporate 

contract management assurance into its work programme. This report is to give 

an understanding into the grounds maintenance and playgrounds provision which 

are currently managed under the Grounds maintenance and Playgrounds 

contract arrangements.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

 

(1) Receive the report and note the arrangements for the Councils grounds 

maintenance and playground maintenance contract and provide any 

feedback to Officers. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Grounds Maintenance and Playgrounds maintenance contract is delivered 

by Continental landscapes and is delivered throughout the borough. It is 

delivered effectively by a robust maintenance and monitoring schedule and keeps 

the borough’s parks, playgrounds and open spaces maintained to a high 

standard.  

 

3.2 The grounds maintenance aspect covers verge maintenance, burials, litter bin 

emptying, shrub maintenance and grass cutting for all Parks, Playgrounds, 

Cemeteries, Open spaces throughout the borough and also included Barrow Park 

Café, putter and Ranger provision.  

 

3.3 This contract was procured by former Officers of the Council and followed a joint 

full OJEU tender procedure by Barrow and South Lakes. The contract was 

Page 103

Agenda Item 15



awarded to Continental Landscapes and commenced on 1st April 2010 for 7 

years with an option to extend for a further 7 years extension, which was agreed 

from 1st April 2017 to 31 March  2024 with the inclusion of the Playgrounds 

inspections, maintenance and litter collection, the inspections undertaken are 

weekly and quarterly documented safety inspections of all the equipment to 

ensure they are safe for all users and litter collection of litter bins and the 

surrounding playground enclosure. 

 

3.4 The contract is managed by the Operational Services department with Officers 

carrying out inspections for health & safety compliance and contract performance, 

there is a rectification structure within the contract, however, this is infrequently 

used due to the open and honest communication with the contractor. Delivery of 

the contract requirements are discussed openly through weekly operational 

meetings and monthly documented contract meetings. The key performance 

indicators within the contract are set out in the contract document, and we aim to 

deliver these services to this specification.   A list of the performance measures 

are attached at Appendix 1. Officers understand the importance of contract 

requirements and address any contract failures directly with the contractor.  

The contract verification process is set out within the Contract particulars and has 

been used with the addition of the Playgrounds in 2017 and will expire on 31 May 

2024, no arrangements have been made to retender or review.   

 

3.5 Members are asked to receive the report and provide any update. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Not applicable for this report. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 None – the report is to update members on contract management 

 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities  

6.1 By enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives and by creating a 

vibrant, safe & welcoming place people want to live.   

 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 None 

 

 

Legal  

7.1.3 There are no issues to raise in this report. 

 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental  

7.2 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No – not applicable for this report 

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 15



 Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 
 
 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Breakdown of Client /contractor 

communication 

Failure to deliver contract 

requirements 

Regular documented 

contract meetings and 

open communication to 

ensure issues can be 

raised and addressed 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Insufficient budget should 

communications breakdown  

Other additional 

arrangements are to be 

made to complete 

necessary work resulting in 

overspend 

Regular documented 

contract meetings and 

open communication to 

ensure issues can be 

raised and addressed 

 

Contact Officers  

Marie Richards  Head of Operational Services 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Contract KPIs 

2   

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

  

Page 105

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Grounds Maintenance Contract  -  Monitoring of performance  

 

Contract 
reference 

Performance specification requirement 

55.1 The contract’s performance of the services shall be measured against the 
obligations, standard, target and benchmarks set out in this agreement 

55.2 The Contract Manager shall, at the request of an Authorised Officer, attend 
such meetings arranged by the authority with members of the public, other 
organisation officers of the Authority , elected members or auditors as are 
concerned with the provision of the service. 

55.3 The contractor shall assist the authority as necessary and undertake as 
requested any monitoring of the services or of the used or recipients of the 
services as the authority shall require in order for the authority to fulfil and 
of it statutory obligations, including, without limitation, to meet its 
obligations under the Race relations (amendment) Act 2000 

55.4 The contractor shall throughout the term and any extension institute and 
maintain a system designed to ensure services are carried out to the 
standard as set out in Clause 18.1. such a system shall include (without 
limitation): 
55.4.1 Meetings once a month between the contract manager and the 
authorised officers 
55.4.2 Daily supervision of the work of the staff, the carrying out of 
frequent inspections of the grounds and premises sufficient to ensure the 
specification is met at all times and compliance with the instructions of any 
authorised officer. 
55.4.3. Provide for books and records to be kept in respect of the provision 
of the service to the extent 
        55.4.3.1 – requires by the specification; or 
        55.4.3.2 – reasonably required by the authority to ensure that any cost      
charged to the authority in respect of variation are properly vouched for; or 
        55.4.3.4 -otherwise reasonably required to ensure the services are 
provided in a proper and timely fashion. 
 

55.5 The system shall be operated by the contract manager on behalf of the 
contractor and all reports and records maintained in connection with such 
system shall be open to inspection by any authorised officer. In the event 
that any written recommendations concerning the improvement of such a 
system are made by an authorised officer from time to time, such 
recommendations shall, as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event 
within a month be implemented by the contract unless an appropriate 
waiver of the recommendation has been agreed by an authorised officer. 

55.6 An authorised officer or his representative shall have the right at any time 
to inspect the grounds and premises (whether before, after or during the 
carrying out of the services or any of them). 

Page 107

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



55.7 The contractor shall as soon as reasonably practicable, provide an 
authorised officer with any information relating to the carrying out of the 
services which he may reasonably request.  

55.8 Throughout the term and any extension, the parties shall work tighter to 
ensure that this agreement and the contractors performance of the 
services request value for money and continuous improvement for the 
benefit of the authority. 

55.9 Within 6 months of the commencement date, the contractor shall prepare 
and submit to the authority a half-year review of the services, to include 
the following matters: 
55.9.1 -The contractor’s view of successes and failure within the first 6 
moths following the commencement date, along with the reasons for any 
weaknesses and/or failure, and respective responsibilities for those 
weaknesses or failure, along with an action plan for rectifying and ongoing 
problems identified. 

55.10 Within 2 months of each anniversary of the commencement date the 
contract shall prepare and submit to the authority a review (“the annual 
contract review”) which shall contain and analysis of the services 
throughout the previous year focussing on those areas which were 
particularly successful and those areas where the services might have been 
I proved and an action plan for rectifying any problem areas) 

55.11 The annual contract review shall be held by the authority in commercial 
confidence and shall not be disclosed to anyone other than to elected 
members and officers of the authority directly associated with the 
provision of the services, internal and external auditors of the authority 
and the authorities’ solicitors.  

55.12 The contractor shall attend all meetings arranged by the authority to 
discuss the annual contract review and the authority may in its absolute 
discretion issues instruction requiring the contractor to implement any 
measure which otherwise might reasonably be considered necessary by the 
authority to ensure value for money. 

55.13 At any time during the term and any extension the authority shall be 
entitled to carry out, either itself of by engaging a suitably qualified third 
party, a through review of the operation of the agreement and the 
provision for the services, including, if considered appropriate a value for 
money review. The contractor hall offer all reasonable assistance to the 
authority and any independent third party in the carrying out of this review 
and shall attend such meetings and provide such documents as may be 
reasonably necessary for this purpose. 

 Weekly playground inspections – Target 100% 

 

 

Page 108

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Barrow Business Improvement District
	T2_Business_Plan

	9 Performance Management Q2 2022-2023
	Performance Management Appendix

	10 Work Programme Update
	11 Memorial Bench Policy
	Memorial Bench Policy - Nov 2021
	Memorial Bench Policy - December 2022

	12 Catering and Cleaning Contract Management Report
	Appendix 1 - Catering
	Quartely Review Terms of Reference

	13 Cleaning of Public Conveniences, Bus Shelters and Stairwells Contract 2020 - 2022
	14 Building cleaning (Offices and Housing Common Areas)
	15 Grounds Maintenance & Playgrounds Contract
	Groundsmaintenanceperformancemeasures_v1


